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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of CL. Educate Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CL Educate Limited (‘the
Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as 'the Group’), its associate as listed in Annexure 1, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associate as at 31 March 2024, and their consolidated
profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, its associate in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘'ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained together with the audit evidence
obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 16 of the Other Matter(s)
section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont'd)

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 66 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements which describes
the Group has receivables from Nalanda Foundation amounting to Rs. 525 lacs which are long
outstanding. Based on legal advice and its assessment of the merits of the case, the management is of
the view that the aforesaid receivable balances are good and recoverable and hence, no adjustment is
required in the accompanying Consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2024.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration
of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consclidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Revenue recognition (Refer note 2(C)(ii) and note
35 to the accompanying consolidate financial
statements)

We refer to the Group material accounting policies in
note 2(ii} and the revenue related disclosures in note
35 of the consolidate financial statements. Revenue
is a key business driver and has significant impact
on the financial statements of the Group and is
therefore, susceptible to misstatement.

Revenue recognition under Ind AS 115, ‘Revenue
from contracts with customers’ (Ind AS 115))
involves significant judgement by the management
in identification of separate performance obligations
in contracts with multiple performance obligations,
determining transaction price in view of discount
offered to the customers, allocation of such
transaction price to the identified performance
obligations to ensure the revenue is booked in
correct periods.

With respect to revenue recognition from fixed price
contracts, the revenue is recognised on in Statement
of profit and loss over the period of the contract in
proportion to the stage of completion of the service
at reporting date.

Considering various types of revenue generating
activities of the Group, significant volume of

Our audit procedures included but not limited to
the following:

« Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s
revenue recognition policy in accordance with
Ind AS 115 including evaluation of
management’s assessment of performance
obligations determined to be satisfied over a
period of time and at a point of time and related
method of measuring progress towards
complete satisfaction of such performance
obligation.

« Obtained understanding of the revenue
recognition process, and evaluated the design
and tested the operating effectiveness of key
controls implemented by the Group in relation to
revenue recognition including discounts.

« Performed test of details for samples selected
from revenue transactions recorded during the
year, and during a specific period before and
after year end, by inspecting invoices and other
related supporting documents for such samples
to ensure revenue has been recorded as per the
accounting policy of the Group for such samples
in the correct period with correct amounts.

+ Performed analytical procedures which
included review of price, quantity and discounts
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

| transactions, the materiality of amounts involved,
| and significant judgements involved as mentioned
above, revenue recognition was identified as a key
audit matter for the current year audit.

Loss allowance for Trade Receivables (Refer
Note 2(C)(ii) and Note 15 to the accompanying
consolidate financial statements)

The Company has trade receivables of Rs 6,496.77
lacs as at 31 March 2024 (net of impairment of Rs
265.42 lacs). During the year, the Group has
recorded a charge of Rs 1,204.34 lacs towards bad
debts for such trade receivables.

Owing to the nature of the operations of the Group
and related customer profiles, the Group has
significant long standing trade receivable balances,
for which appropriate loss allowance is required to
be created for expected credit losses using simplified
approach in accordance with the requirements of Ind
AS 109, Financial Instruments, measuring the loss
allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses.

For the purpose of expected credit loss assessment
of trade receivables, significant judgement is
required by the management to estimate the timing
and amount of realisation of these receivables basis
the past history, customer profiles and consideration
of other internal and external sources of information.

Considering the significant judgement involved, high
estimation uncertainty and materiality of the amounts
involved, we have identified loss allowance on trade
receivables as a key audit matter for the current year
audit.

variances and month-to-month ratio analysis

based on customer level and company level
data.

+ Evaluated the adequacy and accuracy of
relevant disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Ind AS
115.

Our audit procedures included but not limited to
the following:

* Understanding the trade receivables process
and evaluating design and testing the operating
effectiveness of control with regards to
valuation of trade receivables.

+ Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade
receivables at year end on sample basis.

* Obtained a list of outstanding trade
receivables, identified  significant long
outstanding receivables, and discussed plan of
recovery with the management.

+ Circularised balance confirmations to a
sample of trade receivables and reviewed the
reconciling items, if any.

» Verified the appropriateness of management
judgement with respect to measurement of ECL
provision for trade receivables in accordance
with Ind As 109.

+ Tested subsequent settlement of trade
receivables after the balance sheet date on a
sample basis, as applicable.

« Verified the related disclosures made in notes
to the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 109.

Chartered Accountants
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont'd)

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's
Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associate in accordance with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of
its associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process
of the companies included in the Group and of its associate.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Chartered Accountants
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont'd)

. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act

we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its
associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information/ financial
statements of the entities or business activities within the Group and its associate, to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in the financial
statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

Other Matter

16. We did not audit the financial statements of seven subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect(s)
total assets of ¥ 5,578.64 Lacs as at 31 March 2024, total revenues of ¥ 3,447.46 lacs and net cash
inflows/outflows amounting to  431.70 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share
of net loss (including other comprehensive income) of ¥ 113.34 lacs for the period ended 1 April 2023
to 16 February 2024, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of 1 associate,
whose financial statements has not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited
by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the
consaclidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries and associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of section 143 of
the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, are based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.

Further, of these subsidiaries, four subsidiaries, are located outside India whose financial statements
and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with group accounting principles and
which have been audited by other auditors under Indian Standards on Auditing.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17. As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of the report(s)
of the other auditor(s), referred to in paragraph 16, on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, we report that the Holding Company, 1 subsidiary, incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have paid remuneration to their respective
directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that 2 subsidiaries, incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act have not paid or provided for any managerial
remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable
in respect of such subsidiaries.

18. As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the
consideration of the Order reports issued till date by the respective other auditors as mentioned in
paragraph 16 above, of companies included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024 and covered under the Act we report that:

following are the qualifications/adverse remarks reported by us and the other auditors in the Order
reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 for which such Order reports have been issued till date and made available to us:

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

' . | Clause
ggﬁ;’nagny / number of the
NSo Name CIN subsidiary / gﬁiﬁ repoi;t
Associdtel —/ qualified or
Joint Venture adverse
Threesixtyone Degree Minds Subsidiary .
1 Consulting Private Limited U74910TN2006PTC060463 company Clause vii (a)
2 | Career Launcher Private Limited U80301DL2021PTC378555 | Subsidiary Clause ix (d)
- company |
Ice Gate Educational Institute Private Subsidiary -
3 Limited U80300GJ2015PTC084170 company Clause vii (a)
- Helding Clause ii (b) &
4 CL Educate Limited L74899DL1996PLC425162 Company Clause iv

19. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report (s)
of the other auditor (s) on separate financial statements and other financial information of the
subsidiaries incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

c)

d)

9)

Chartered Accountants

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors except for the matters stated in paragraph
19(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended).

The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary
and associate, and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries’, covered under the Act,
none of the directors of the Group companies, are disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
with respect to the consolidated financial statements are as stated in paragraph 19(b) above on
reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 19(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended)]

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company, its subsidiary and associate covered under the Act, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure I’ wherein we have
expressed an unmodified opinion; and
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Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information
of the subsidiaries incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group, as detailed in Note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements;

i The Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31
March 2024;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate, covered under the
Act, during the year ended 31 March 2024;

iv. a. The respective managements of the Holding Company its subsidiaries and associate
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associate respectively that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief as disclosed in note 64(v) to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or its subsidiaries and associate to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding
Company, or any such subsidiaries and associate (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries , associate
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associate respectively that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 64(vi) to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or
its subsidiaries, associate from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Holding Company, or any such subsidiaries, associate shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed by us and that performed by the auditors of
the subsidiaries and associate as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our or ather auditors’ notice that has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b)
above contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate have not declared or paid any dividend
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

vi. As stated in Note 69 to the consolidated financial statements and based on our examination
which included test checks and that performed by the respective auditors of the subsidiaries
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Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

which are companies incorporated in India and audited under the Act, except for the instances
mentioned below, the Holding Company, and its subsidiaries (including Threesixtyone Degree
Minds Consulting Private Limited) in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2023,
have used accounting software for maintaining their books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we
and respective auditors of the above referred subsidiaries did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with, other than the consequential impact of the exception

given below:

Nature of exception noted

Details of Exception

Instances of accounting software
for maintaining books of account
for which the feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility was not
operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded
in the software

The audit trail feature was not enabled at database level for
accounting software Microsoft Dynamics Navision and CL Zone
(used for recording of invoices) to log any direct data changes,
used for maintenance of all accounting records by the Holding
Company and ane subsidiary.

Instances of accounting software
for maintaining books of account
which did not have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log)
facility

The audit trail feature of accounting software Tally used for
maintaining books of accounts of three subsidiaries did not have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

Annexure 1
List of entities included in the Statement
Holding Company

1. CL Educate Limited

List of Subsidiaries

Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited

Career Launcher Private Limited

lce Gate Educational Institute Private Limited

CL Singapore Hub Pte. Ltd. (w.e.f. 161" August 2023)#

Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited (w.e.f 17t February 2024)*
Kestone CL Asia Hub Pte. Limited

Kestone CL US Limited (step down subsidiary)

CL Educate (Africa) Limited (step down subsidiary)

PT. Kestone CLE Indonesia (step down subsidiary)

COENDIUAWN

# Nil share capital infused, only company is incorporated during the year

* Associate company from 1 April 2023 to 16 February 2024

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure I

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consclidated financial statements of CL Educate Limited (‘the
Holding Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as ‘the Group’) and its associate, as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies and its associate company which are companies covered under the Act, as at
that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company its subsidiary and its associate company,
which are companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an apinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, as
aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(‘the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.
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Annexure Il to the independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion the Holding Company its subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are
companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March
2024, based on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Other Matter

. We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it
relates to three subsidiary companies (including one of the subsidiary from 17 February 2024 to 31
March 2024), which are companies covered under the Act, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of ¥ 855.84 lacs and net assets of Z (18.17) lacs as at 31 March 2024, total revenues of
217.15 lacs and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 203.99 lacs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also
include the Group's share of net loss including other comprehensive income of ¥ 113.34 lacs for the
period 01 April 2023 to 16 February 2024, in respect of one associate company, which is a company
covered under the Act, whose internal financial controls with reference to financial statements have
not been audited by us. The internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far
as it relates to such subsidiary companies and associate company have been audited by other
auditors whose reports has been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

Chartered Accountants



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL. Educate
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

for the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, as aforesaid, under
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates to such subsidiary companies and associate
company is based solely on the reports of the auditors of such companies. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done by and on the reports of the
other auditors.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’'s Registration No.; 001076N/N500013
\Mj
N U\l

Neeraj Goel

Partner

Membership No.: 099514
UDIN: 24099514BKCMVG4997

Place: New Delhi
Date: 08 May 2024

Chartered Accountants



CL Educate Lirnited
Consolidated Balunce Sheet as at March 31, 2024
{ A auwmecats are in Rupees Jaes, wiless otherwise stated)

Assets
Non-current assets
Froperty, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Livestment property
Goodwill
Orther intangib'e assets
Intangibles under development
Iavestment in associates aceounted using equiry method
Pinancial assets

3 Investrnents

Gy Otber financial assets
Deferrea tay assets (net)

Non-carrent tax

ssers fnet)
Or-her non-current assets

Tutal Gov-cuteent asscts

Curaeat 2asssis

FA Rl ) o 1]

wonancial assecy
 Trwde receivables
o0 Casaoand cash equivalents
) Bank batances other rhan iy abee e
v Losus
£9) Orhar fiaancial asseta

Ohiher currens assets

Total cutiont assets

Lisposal group - Aszets held for aale
Towl assets

Equity and Hahilites
Eguity

~auity share capiral
t'
bgnity aributable - equity holders of parent
Not-oomrrel

[QIYS

2y

P irterests
Yaoral equity

Note

S LI S

=™
e R

—_

e P b

15

[Re]
16
17
18
19
0

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
622.08 542.05
1,019.59 32480
276.90 282,66
1,546.57 71543
3,981.99 4,6-401,33
209,10 54811
- 742
60,50 60O
1,103.65 4,609.88
1,7603.33 1,871.00
1,872.68 1,981 75
16.00 25 50
14,41'_7.59 16,508.93
126155 £21550
6,496.77 6,963 40
4,133.72 2,500.5-
6,242.717 3.565.7%
85,30 9477
200795 1 464,08
2,837.76 3,345.6%
23,065.23 19,450.82
1A2540 132340
33.806.22 37,282.85
2,702,062 B
25,35%.48 B 4 )
23,0610 27.477.11
B (208.74) _ 1,27
27,852.36 27,4783




CL Educate Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(AN amonnis are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Continsed from previous page)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
@ Borrowings 24 91.59 69.52
(i) Lease liabilities 25 828.62 336.24
Provisions 26 595.93 563.22
Other non-cutrent liabilities 27 169.84 187.75
Total non-cutrent liabilities 1,685.98 1,156.73
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Botrowings 28 2,016.55 975.45
(ii) Lease liabilities 29 265.19 285.07
(iif) Trade payables 30
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and 76.84 155.71
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3,255.97 3,883.89
(iv) Other financial liabilities 31 1,062.03 912.04
Other current liabilities 32 2,367.06 2,316.16
Provisions 33 131.31 70.16
Current tax liabilities (net) 34 92.93 49.26
Total curtent liabilities 9,267.88 8,647.74
Total equity and liabilities 38,806.22 37,282.85

Summary of material accounting policies

1

The accompanying notes 1 to 72 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

This is consolidated Balance Sheet refetred to in our report of even date.

For Walket Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm rcgistratﬂm No. 001076N/N500013
%

N .

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CL Educate Limited

N8l Malnyt

- |
e j— =
-—“—',o' = T =

COnANDIOL T
Neeraj Goel d Nikhil Mahajan ~ Gautam Puri
Partner Executive Directot and  Vice-Chairman and
Membership No.:099514 Group CEO Enterprise ~ Managing Director
Business
DIy 0003340 DIN: 00033548

achna Sharma Arjun Wadhwa

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

ICSI M. No.: A17780

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 08, 2024

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: May 08, 2024
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CL Educate Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the yeat ended March 31, 2024
(Al antunts are in Rupees hacs, unless othennise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expcenses

Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods
Emplovee benedits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expensc
Service delivers expenses

Saies and marketing expenses

Otier evpenses

Toral expenses

Praiit/ (loss) before shate of profit/ (loss) of equity accounted investees and

tax

Lixceptional items

Share of loss of equity accounted investees
Profit/{loss) before tax (from continuing operations)

Tax expenise

- Currest m

- Deferred tax

- Tax relazed to prior years

Total mx expense

Profit/(ioss) fu: the yeat (from continuing operations)
(Loss)/profit {or the year (discontinued operations)

Profit/ (loss) for the year

QOther comprehensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Income-tax relating to these items

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Otner comprehensive income for the year

Tetal comprehensive loss for the year (comprising loss for the year and other

comptehensive loss for the year)

Note

w1

(ST
[

46

61

w1
[+

50
61

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
31,855.39 29,131.39
1,385.58 640 07
33,240.97 29,771.46
942.13 753,10
19.65 35.49
{(47.58) 234,46
5,095.68 4,655.97
245.99 160.40
1,382.64 1,116.53
713162 16,040.12
2,433.98 2.103.53
3,876.12 2,740.92
31,680.23 27,340.52
2,160.74 1,930.94
- 134.95 (15.65)
2,295.69 1,915.29
(113.34) (40.16)
2,182.35 1,875.13
313.70 301.81
308.68 681.08;
(20.83) -
601.53 (375.27)
1,580.82 2,254.40
0.23) (1.01)
1,580.59 2,252.39
6.00 4.34
(.57 (1.2
38.62 .]‘99.()2
43.05 202.16
1,623.64 2,455.54
(Continued 15 next page)
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CL Educate Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(AH amonnts are in Raupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

(Continned from previous page)

Profit/ (loss) attributable from continuing operations to:

Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/ profit attributable from discontinuing operations to:

Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income/(loss ) for the year
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests

Eatnings per equity share
Basic
Diluted

Summary of material accounting policies

Not Year ended Year ended
ote March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,509.01 2,252.36
71.81 2.03
1,580.82 2,254.40
0.23) (1.01)
0.23) (1.01)
43,05 202.16
43.05 202.16
1,551.83 2,453.51
71.81 2.03
1,623.64 2,455.55
47
2.89 4.08
2.88 408
1

The accompanying notes 1 to 72 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

This is consolidated statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm tegistration No. 001076N/N500013

Neeraj Goel
Partner
Membership No.:099514

Place: Gurugtam, Haryana
Date: May 08, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

CL Educate Limited
A
| /|
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Nikhil Mahjai “~"" Gautam Pusi
Executive Diredior and Vice-Chaitman and
Group CEO Enterprise Business Managing Director
DIN: 10033404 DIN: 00033548
Rachna Sharma Arjun Wadhwa
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

ICSI M. No.: A17780
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 08, 2024
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CL Educate Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended Match 31, 2024

(-1 anonnts are in Raupees lacs, nnless otherwise siated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. | Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit/(loss) before tax from:
Continuing operations 2,182.33 1,875.13
Discontinued operations ©.23) (1.01)
Profit before tax 2,182.10 1,874.12
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,382.64 1,116.53
Loss /{gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment 8.69 (2,439.80)
Loans and advances written off - 1,214.60
Loss on sale of investments 568.69
Property, plant and equipment discarded - 14.99
Receivabies written off - 361.18
Impairment of goodwill - 296.00
Provision for slow moviag inventory - 100
[inancs coses 24599 16040
Share of loss in associate 113,34 4016
Advances written of f 19 83 i8.65
Rencal income on investment property (18.00) {18.00)|
Employce skare-based paynient expense 92.83 76.85
Liabilities no longer reguired written back (503.42) {9055}
Unwinding of interest on security deposits (15.69) (i6.81)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain {(4.88) (45.04)
Gain on sale of investments in mutual find - (91.30)
Interest income (686.50) (316.81)
{Rain on lease randification (56.17) -
Espected creditloss provision/bad debt written off 1,325.70 497.51
I-Opemting profir before working capital changes 4,086.46 3,231.57
I

Movements in working capital

(Increase) in trade receivables (895.40) 2,421.59)
- Increase)/Ducrease in inveniosfes (45.67) 191.31
- Decreasc/(Increase) in loans 947 (8.29)

(Incravse)/Decrease 1n finandial assets (484.96) 415.96

Decrease /{Increase) in current and non current assets 521.24 H07.90)
- Decrease in other current and non-current Kabilitics 330.39 326.91
- (Decrease)/Increase in trade payables (707.45) 1,194.54

(Decrease)/Increase in provisions 2,.59) 74.29

(Decrease)/Increase in current and non current financial liabilities (10.76) 439.23
Cash flow generated from operations 2,775.73 3,036.23
Add: [ncome tax refunds/(tax paid) (218.27) (704.84)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 2,557.46 2,331.39

B. | Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, irtangible under
development (including capital advances and capital creditors)

Intangible acquired through business combination

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Purchase of investment in subsidiaries 1nd associates

Sale of investments in mutual funds

Investments in bank deposits

(2,183.38)

(2,460.50)

(2,728.15)

6,336.71

4,077.80
(8,846.14)

@59

Maturity of bank deposits 3,585.31 1.394.56
Interest received 552.36 113.18
Rental income on investment property 18.00 18.00
Net cash flow generated from/(used in) investing activities (B) (426.83) 863.42

f
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CL Educate Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended Match 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless atherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Continsied from previons page)
C. | Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds/(tepayment) of borrowings (refer note 28) 968.33 (672.67)
Loan taken from related party - 20.31
Proceeds from issuc of shares on exercise of stock options 4.23 -
Buy back of equity shares (841.56) (960.01)
Buy back tax paid (169.00) (202.03)
Payment of lease liabilities (refer note 49) (386.85) (289.48)
Interest paid (133.83) (109.12)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (558.68) (2,213.00)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,571.95 981.81
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,500.84 1,519.03
Add : Acquired through business combination 60.93 -
Balance at the end of the year 4,133.72 2,500.84
(i) | Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- on cutrent account 1,847.15 2,249.37
Deposits with original maturities with less than 3 months 2,171.72 -
Cash on hand 114.85 251.47
4,133.72 2,500.84
(i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on "Cash Flow

Statements" specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable.

(iii) The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 1 to 72,

Summary of material accounting policies 1

This is consolidated statement of cashflows referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Boatd of Directors of

Chartered Accountants CL Educate Limited .

ICAI Firm registratiog No. 001076N/N500013 !
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Neeraj Goel Nikhil Mahgjarr Gautam Puri

Partner Executive Directdr and Vice-Chairman and

Membership No.:099514 Group CEO Enterptise Busiz Managing Director
DIN:M0033404 DIN: 00033548
Rachna Sharma Arjun Wadhwa
Company Sectetaty Chief Financial Officer
ICST M. No.: A17780

Place: Gurugram, Hatyana Place: New Delhi

Date: May 08, 2024 Date: May 08, 2024




CL Educate Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1. Corporate Information

CL Educate Limited (the ‘Holding Company’) is a Company domiciled in India, with its registered office and
corporate office situated at A-45, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Area, Mathura Road, New Dclhi - 110044.
The Holding Company was incorporated in India on April 25, 1996 to conduct various educational and
consulting programmes. The Holding Company is providing education and test preparation  training
programmes which includes tuitions to school students and coaching to aspirants for a variety of entrance
examinations both at the school and graduate / post graduate levels.

The Holding Company’s equity shares are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National
Stock Exchange (NSE) in India.

The Holding Company along with its subsidiaries and its associate has been collectively hereinafter referred
to as the ‘Group’.

The Consolidated Financials Statements are approved for issue by the Holding Company’s Board of
Directors on May 08, 2024,

2. (A) General Information and compliance with Ind AS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(‘MCA’) under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(B) Material accounting policies
(i) Basis of preparation:

These Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”) and comply with requirements of Ind AS notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended from time to time, stipulation contained in Schedule III (Revised) and other
pronouncements/ provisions of applicable laws and the guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board
of India, to the extent applicable.

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and
measurement basis summarised below. These accounting policies have been used consistently throughout all
periods presented in these consolidated financial statements, unless stated otherwise

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

L Derivative financial instruments;

ii. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments);

iil. Detined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; and

iv. Share based payments.

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

i Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal opetating cycle; /




CL Educate Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

i. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
il Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

L It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

1. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

i, It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv. There is no unconditional tight to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and its tealisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

The Consolidated Financial Statement of the Group have been presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is
also its functional currency and all amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have
been rounded off to the neatest lacs as per the requirement of Schedule TII to the Act, unless otherwise
stated.
B. Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprises the financial statements of the Holding Company, its
subsidiaries and associate. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, ot has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

a) Power over the investee (i.c. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee);

b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

¢) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:
2) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
b) The rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
¢) The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights; and

d) The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of  the
other voting tights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group




CL Educate Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Asscts, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiaty acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence, i.e., the
powet to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

The following consolidation procedures are adopted:
Subsidiary:

2) Combine like items of asscts, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaties. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the asscts and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date;

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investments in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion
of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill; and

¢) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, incomes, expenses and cash flows telating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are climinated in full). Ind AS 12 Tncome Taxes’ applics
to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions.

Profit o loss and each component of Other Comptehensive Income (“OCI”) are attributed to the equity holders
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

® Detecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

® Derecognises the carrying amount of any noncontrolling interests;

® Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

® Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

® Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

® Recognises any surplus ot deficit in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss;

® Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained

carnings, as approptiate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities

Associate:

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated balance sheet. When a member of the Group transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses from transactions with the associate are recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statement only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

The carrying amount of the investments is adjusted to recognisc changes in the Group’s share of net assets of
the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount of
the investment.




CL Educate Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and explanatory infotmation on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the
associate. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCL. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate. The aggregate
of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investments in its associate. At each repotting date, the Group determines whether there is objective
evidence that the investments in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value,
and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate’ in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investments at its fair value. Any difference between the catrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

On acquisition of control ovet previously owned associates, the Group re-measures its previously held equity
interest in the associates at the acquisition date fair value and the difference, if any, between the carrying amount
and the fair value is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Goodwill is generally computed as the difference between the sum of consideration transferred (measured at the
fair value) the non-controlling interest (“NCI”) in the acquire and the net of the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

C. Material accounting policies

®

Fair value measurements

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value which is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between independent market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset ot transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value on a
tecurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
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(i)

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assec or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an amount
that reflect the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those product or services
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of

any taxes/duties and discounts.

The Group earns revenue from Educational and training business, sales of text books and integrated
marketing and management services.

Revenue from services

Revenue in respect of educational and training programme received from students is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss over the period of contract in proportion to the stage of completion
of the services at the reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the curriculum. Fee
is recorded at invoice value, net of discounts and taxes, if any. The revenue from time and material contracts
is recognised at the amount to which the Group has right to invoice.

If the services rendered by the Group exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If the payment
exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognised. Revenue from training is recognised over the
service period of delivery.

In case of EdTech scgment, the Group offers to collect payment from its customers cither on one time basis
at the beginning of the performance obligation or on instalment plan basis during the performance obligation.
In case of MarTech segment, the Group receives certain amount of payment upfront while the remaining is
collected over the completion of performance obligation.

Performance obligation:
The performance obligation provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as
at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Group expects to recognize these

amounts in revenue.

Revenue as an agent

The Group derives its revenue from event and managed manpower services. When the Group determines
that the nature of its promise, is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself
(i.c. entity is the principal), then it recognises the revenue earned as the gross amount of consideration.
However, where the Group promise, is to arrange, for the customer to provide goods/services as an agent
then revenue is recognised only to extent of commission/markup/charges earned by it. In such cases the
Group does not control the goods and services provided to a customer. The indicators evaluated by the
Group to conclude if it is an agent are the following:

(2) That another party is primarily responsible for fulfilling the contract;

(b) The Group does not have any inventory risk A
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(©) The Group does not have discretion in establishing prices for the other party’s goods or setvices and,
thetefore, the benefit that the Group can receive from those goods or services is limited;

(d) the Group’s consideration is in the form of a commission / setvice charge or markup; and

(e) the Group is not exposed to credit risk for the amount teceivable from a customer in exchange for the
other party’s goods or services.

Revenue from sale of text books

Revenue from Sale of Textbooks is recognized at the point of time upon transfer of control of promised
goods to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange
for those goods i.e. when it is probable that the entity will receive the economic benefits associated with the
transaction and the related revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, which is generally the contracted price, net of any taxes/duties and
discounts considering the impact of variable consideration.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, whick is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses and price concessions, if any, as specified in the contract
with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

In case of test preparation services, sale of text books is recognised at the time of receipt of payment on
account of education and training program provided by the Group and is recorded net of discounts and
taxes, if any.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services (“performance obligations”)
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group has received or expects to reccive in
exchange for these products or services (“transaction price”). When there is uncertainty as to collectability,
revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

‘The customer pays the fixed amount based on a payment schedule. If the services rendered by the Group
exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If the payment exceed the services rendered, a contract
liability is recognised. Revenue from training is recognised over the period of delivery.

Contract Liabilities (Unearned Revenue)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customers for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due). Amounts billed and received or recoverable
prior to the reporting date for services and such services or part of such services are to be performed after
the reporting date are recorded as contract liabilities as per the provisions of the Ind AS-115.

Other operating income

Revenue in respect of start-up fees from franchisees is recognised on performing a contractually agreed
assignment over a period of time, whether during a single petiod or over more than one period as per agreed
terms of the franchise agreement.

Revenue from commission from Universities in India or abroad is recognised on accrual basis.

Income from advertising is recognised on stage of completion basis as per the terms of the agreement
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Contract Balances
Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is duc).

Impairment of Trade Receivable

The Company measures the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) associated with its asscts based on historical
trends, industry practices and the general business environment in which it operates. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. ECL impairment
loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘other expenses'.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Amounts billed and
received or recoverable prior to the reporting date for services and such services or part of such services are
to be performed after the reporting date are recorded as contract liabilitics as per the provisions of the Ind
AS-115 and shown in other current liabilities.

Contract Liabilities ([Inearned Revenue]

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Amounts billed and
received or recoverable priot to the reporting date for services and such services or part of such services are
to be performed after the reporting date are recorded as contract liabilities as per the provisions of the Ind
AS-115 and shown in other current liabilities.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised as part of revenue from operations in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease except where the rentals are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation.

Interest income

Intetest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method.
The ‘cffective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend

Dividend income is recognised in profit and loss on the date on which the Group’s right to receive payment
is established.

Other income

Other income other than above like rewards and recoveries are recognised on accrual basis.
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(iii)

@iv)

Inventories

Inventories comprising of traded goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost
of inventories is based on weighted average basis formula.

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary coutse of business
less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on
an item-by-item basis.

Property, plant and equipment
Measurement at recognition:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Cost of
construction that relate directly to specific property, plant and equipment and that are attributable to
construction activity in general are included in capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
if it increased the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. All other expenses on existing assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure
and cost of réplacing parts, are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period
during which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
value over their useful life using straight line method, and is recognised in the consolidated Statement of

Profit and [Loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods
are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule IT of the Act.

Property, plant and equipment B Useful lives (in years)
Building B 60 |
Furniture and fixtures B | 810 B
Plant and machinery 15

| Office equipment |5

Vehicle ) 8-10 B B
Computer equipment 3 B
Computer servers and networks | 6 -
Leasehold improvements | Lesser of 3 years or period of lease

1
J

F | /

’ i /
Y

N X~
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Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful
lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these asscts.

Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is

provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may
be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if
any, atre accounted for prospectively.

The tesidual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Reclassification to investment property

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment propetty, the property is reclassified
as investment property at its carrying amount on the date of reclassification.

Capital Advances

Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each reporting date is
classified as capital advances.

Derecognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon
disposal ot when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain o loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds or amount of
security deposit adjusted and the cartying amount of the asset) is included in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

The Group depreciates building component of investment property over 60 years from the date of original
putchase on straight linc basis in accordance with Schedule 11 to the Act.

Though the Group measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value is determined by an independent valuer who holds 2 recognised
and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the relevant location and category of the
investment property being valued. Investment properties are derccognised either when they have been
disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cartying amount of the asset
is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount of consideration
from the derecognition of investment property the Group considers the effects of variable consideration,
existence of a significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the
buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use,
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(vii)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation petiod and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected uscful life ot the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Amottisation is calculated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.

The reassessed uscful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets - Useful Life (in
| years)
| Software 5 -
Website ) 5 B
' Content development | 7 |
?on—compete fees - | 3 and half )
| Intellectual property rights B 15
| CAT online module B ) 13
Melting POT [ 10
IQM ' 10 ]
Aspiration AT - |10
Online Video Content - - B - |5 -
| Wain Connect B 10

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.c., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition
of the assct (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the Consolidated Sratement of Profit and Loss. when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, ate not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Development
expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be
measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, futute economic benefits
are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or
sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of
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measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquitee’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilitics assumed include contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow
of tesources embodying economic benefits is not probable,

However, deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ and Ind AS 19
‘Employee Benefits’ respectively. When a liability assumed is recognised at the acquisition date, but the related
costs are not deducted in determining taxable profits until a later period, a deductible temporary difference
atises which results in a deferred tax asset. A deferred tax asset also arises when the fair value of an identifiable
asset acquired is less than its tax base.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ (Tnd AS 109’), is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred over
the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified
all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value
of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to cach of the Group’s cash-gencrating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquirec are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, ot more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its cartying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit,

Any impairment loss for goodwill is trecognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed off, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or
additional assets or liabilides ate recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized
at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does
not exceed one year from the acquisition date,

Income taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the petiod in respect
of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Income-tax Act, 1961 and rules thereunder. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount ate those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in OCI or in

equity).

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the undetlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions whete appropriate.

Deferred tax

Defetred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their book bases. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax
asscts and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax telating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferted
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax asscts are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax asscts against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (“MAT”) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the relevant members of the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified
period. Such asset is reviewed at each reporting period end and the adjusted based on circumstances then
prevailing.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(“CGU”) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account.
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded Group’s ot other available fair
value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a petiod of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections
beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections
in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Protit and Loss.

An assessment is made at each repotting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates
the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor cxceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case, the teversal is treared as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and 2 financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recosnition and measnurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVIPL”), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the

financial asset.
X
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as follows:

a)

b)

<)

d)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost where the asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and contractual terms of the asset
give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cashflows and for selling the financial assets, where the
cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comptehensive income (“FVOCI”). The Group has not designated any financial assets in this category.

Financial asset included within the QOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCL. Interest income is tecognized in statement of
profit and loss for debt instruments. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from OCT to Consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at fair value throuch profit or loss

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”) is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial
asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified
as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a financial asset which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement ot recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group has not designated any financial
asset in this category.

Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held tor trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combinations’ applies are Ind AS classified as at FVTPL. Equity instruments
included within the FVTPL. category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair values. The Group makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCl to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may tganséef éhe cumulative gain
20 \
: 9

or loss within equity. Q/b\) %
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De-recoonition
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired ot the Group has transferred its rights to receive the contractual cash flows from the asset in 2
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group measures the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) associated with its assets based on historical
trends, industry practices and the general business environment in which it operates. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. ECIL.
impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised duting the period is recognised as income/ expense
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘other expenses'.

Financial liabilities

Initial recovnition and measurensent

Financial liabilities ate classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit and loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Stubsequent measnrement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

)

b)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial Labilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

This categoty includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 arc satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losscs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except
for those attributable to changes in own credirt risk, which are recognised in OCI. These gains/ loss are
not subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities designated at amortised costs are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount ot premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
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De-reconition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled ot
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantally
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Oflsetting o linancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated Balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and scttle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date of executing a derivative contract and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Embedded derivatives are separated from host contract and accounted for separately if the host contract is
not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group enters into an arrangement for lease of buildings. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed
period but may have extension or termination options. In accordance with Ind AS 116 — Leases, at inception
of the contract, the Group assesscs whether a contract is, or contains 2 lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of
time in exchange for consideration’.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses
whether:

a) The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the
supplicr has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

b) The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

¢) The Group assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use. At inception or on reassessment of 2 contract that contains a lease component,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Group has clected
not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the undetlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shotter of lease term ot
useful life of right-of-use asset. Right-of-use asset are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the intetest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

a) Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

b) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

) Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

d) The exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and
penalties for eatly termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in futurc lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change
in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension ot termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit ot loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero, as the case may be.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property and leasc
liabilities as a separate line item in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The Group has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 - Teases to short-term leases of all assets
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The
lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Disposal group — Assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and
measured at the lower of their carrying amounts immediately prior to their classification as held for sale and
their fair value less costs to sell. Once classified as held for sale, the assets are not subject to depreciation or
amortisation. Any gain or loss arises on remeasurement or sale is included in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

If an entity has classified an asset (or disposal group) as held for sale, but the held-for-sale ctitetia as specified
in standard are no longer met, the entity shall cease to classify the asset (or disposal group) as held for sale.
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The Group measures a non-current asset that ceases to be classified as held for sale (or ceases to be included
in a disposal group classified as held for sale) at the lower of:

its carrying amount before the asset (or disposal group) was classified as held for sale, adjusted for any
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had the asset (or disposal group)
not been classified as held for sale; and

its recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

Employee benefits

Contribution to provident and other junds

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognises contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the consolidated Balance sheet date exceeds
the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution alteady paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method. The Group recognises termination benefit as a liability
and an expense when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than twelve
months after the balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the discount
rate determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on government bonds.

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan asscts {(excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a cotresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other Comptehensive Income (“OCI”) in
the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on the carliet of:
*  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
*  The date that the Group recognises related restructuring cost

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss:

* Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and

* Net interest expense or income

Compensated absences

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit which are computed based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method
at the petiod end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss and are not defetred. The Group presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet to the
extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the repotting
date. Where Group has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period
beyond twelve months, the balance is presented as a non-current liability.
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Accumulated leaves, which are expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a tesult of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

All other employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss in the petiod in which the employee renders the related service.

Shate-based payments

The Employee Stock Option Scheme (‘the Scheme’) provides for the grant of equity shares of the Group to
its employces. The Scheme provides that employees are granted an option to acquire equity shares of the
Group that vests in a graded manner. The options may be exercised within a specified period. The Group
uses the grant date fair value to account for its equity settled share based payment plans granted to employee,
with a corresponding increase in equity over the petiod that the employees unconditionally become entitled
to the awards. Compensation cost is measured using independent valuation by Black-Scholes model.
Compensation cost, if any is amortised over the vesting period.

The cost is recorded under the head “employee benefit expense” in the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange transactions and translations
Initial recornition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying the foreign currency
amount of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities outstanding as at balance sheet date are restated/translated
using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are
measuted in terms of historical cost denomination in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate
at the date of transaction except for non-monetary item measured at fair value which are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when fair value is determined.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Group’s monetary
items at rates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or reported in previous
financials statement (other than those relating to fixed assets and other long term monetary assets) are
recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

Foreign operations:

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR the functional cutrency of the Group,
at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated
into INR at the exchange rates at the dates of the transaction or an average rate if the average rate
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash cquivalents consist
of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to
a provision is presented in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement. These
estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect cutrent best estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions ate discounted using a cutrent pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of intetnal reports used by the Group’s Management to allocate
resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most
relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the
segment.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considetred for detetmining
the segment result, Expenses which relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments
are included under unallowable cxpenditure.

3. Income which telates to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
unallowable income.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallowable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Group as a
whole and not allocable to any segment.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Group’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker” or ‘CODM’ within
the meaning of Ind AS 108,

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resoutces
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize
a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements. Contingent assets are
only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.
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Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duting the year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events, other than
conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/(loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding duting the period
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares except where result would be antidilutive.

Service Delivery Expenses

These expenses are attributable to the delivery of core services by the Group in both its segments. The
expenses are recognized as per the following policy:

a) Expenses related to project and franchisee expenses are recognised in line with the revenue recognition
Le. over the period of contract in proportion to the stage of completion of the services at the reporting date.
The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the curriculum.

b) Expenses related to faculty, communication, digital learning support and others are recognised as and
when they are incurred.

Classification of refund liabilities:

Group has a policy to sell its sell it books and study material to the end customer with a right of return. The

group has recognised refund liability in respect of customet’s right to return the product in accordance with
Ind AS 115.

The Group has concluded that the arrangement for return is executoty as there is no obligation to deliver
cash until the goods are returned. Accordingly, the Group has presented its refund liabilides as ‘other current
liabilities’.

Material management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements tequires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosute of contingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates and assumptions ate continuously evaluated and are based on management’s
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustments to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In particular, the Group has identified the following areas where matetial judgements, estimates and
assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various
accounting policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes
in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

i) Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most material effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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a) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relativn to claims against the
Group, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be
resolved only when one or mote uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of material judgments
and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events,

b) Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability
that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax
loss carry-forward can be utilised. In addition, material judgement is required in assessing the impact of
any legal or economic limits or uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant tisk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements wete prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market change
or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes arc reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.

a) Useful lives of tangible/intangible assets

The Group reviews its estimate of the useful lives of tangible/intangible assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets.

b) Defined benefit obligation

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-cmployment benetits and the present value of such
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. In view of the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

¢) Inventories

The Group estimates the net realisable values of inventoties, taking into account the most reliable
evidence available at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventotics may be affected by
future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices.

Business combinations

The Group uses valuation techniques when determining the fair values of certain assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination.

e) Impairment of non-financial assets and goodwill
In assessing impairment, Group estimates the recoverable amount of each asset ot cash-generating units

based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty
relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.
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f) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair valuc is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
whete possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 317 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Group.

Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective duting the year:

a.

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to
disclosc their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The
cffective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.
The amendment did not have any material impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This
amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind
AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates.
The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2023. The amendment did not have any matetial impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition
exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary
differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual petiods beginning on or
after April 1, 2023, The amendment did not have any material impact on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company.
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CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(AL amomits arc o Rogpees lacs, undess otherwise siated)

4. Right-of-use assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount Right-of-use assets Total

Gross carrying amount as on April 1, 2022 999.70 999.70
Additions during the year 341.53 341.53
Gross carrying amount as on March 31, 2023 1,341.23 1,341.23
Additions during the year 960.88 960.88
Adjustment on account of rermination / modification of lease (157.96) (157.96)
.Gross carrying amount as on March 31, 2024 2,144.15 2,144.15
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at April 1, 2022 575.00 575.00
Dejreciaiion for the year 241.43 241.43
Balance as at March 31, 2023 816.43 816.43
Depreciation for the year 308.13 308.13
Admustinent on account of termination / modification of lease - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,124.56 1,124.56
et Carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 524.80 524.80
Net Carryineg amount as at March 31, 2024 1,019.59 1,019.59

(This space has been infentivaally left blank)
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CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
) 3
(:’l/l aROHULS 35 i) Rv‘.'}%w lace. miless athermise stated)

5. Investment propetty

A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at the beginning of the year 323.54 323.54
Addittons during the vear - -
Deletions during the vear -
Balance at the end of the year ) 323.54 323.54
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the beginning of the vear 40.88 3512
Depreciation for the vear 5.76 575
Balance at the end of the year 46.64 40.88
Carrying amounts 276.90 282.66
B. Amounts tecognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss for investment property
for profit from investment property refer note 36
Renmal ineome i8.00 18.00
Prafit from investment properties before depreciation 18.00 18.60
Depreciation (refer note 42) 5.76 5.75
Income from investment property 12.24 12.25
C. Measurement of fair value
Investment property 995.00 T87.88
_995.00 787.83

i}, Yigtnwation of fair values

The Grows obiains independent valeations for cach of s investment property by exrernal, independent property valuers, having appropriate
tecognisedd professional gualitications and recent experience in the Jocation and category of the property being valued.

Far masket vilue iy the amoust sxpressed in terms of money that may reasonably be expected to be exchinged petween a willing buyer and a
willing sefler, with equity or both. The valuanon by the valuer assumes thar Group shall continue to operate and run the assets to have zconomic
utility.

Valuation technique:

Undey the market comparable method tor rarket comparable approach) a property’s fair value is estimated based on comparable transactions.
The market coniparable approach is based upon the principle of substitution under which a potential Luyer wiii net pay more for the property
shan it will cost to buy 2 comparable substitute property. In theoty, the best comparable sale would be an cxact duplicaie of the subject property
and weuld indicate, by the known selling price of the duplicate, the price for which the subject property could be sold The unit of comparison
applied by the Company is the price per square meter (sqm).

Fair valne hierarchy

The fair value measurement for the investment property has been categorised as o Level 2 fair value based on the inpurs to the valuation
wechnique used.

‘The valuation techniques and the inputs used in the fair value measurement caregorised within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Valuation technique Observable inputs
Market method Guidelne rate (Per sq. m.) similar piece of land rate (Per sq.
m.}

Iavestment property consists of commercial spaces in Mumbai and Pune. During the year, the Holding Company has assessed that there is no
significanr change in fair value of investment property and accordingly Holding Corapany has considered the fair valuation of investment property
is in accordance with valuation report for the vear 2023-24.




CL Educate Limired

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the yeat ended March 31, 2024
(A amainis are in Ripees ives, antess athernise datedy

6. Goodwill

Carryving amount

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at the end of the year 1,546.57 715.43

6.1 Impairment tests for Goodwill

Goodwill is monitored by management at the level of operating segments as identified in note 37.

For the purpose of impaitment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group's operating divisions which represenr the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is

monitored for internal management purposes, which is not higher than the Group’s operating segments. The aggregare carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to
segments are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
FdTech 1,432.76 601.62
MatrTech 113.81 113.81
1,546.57 715.43

6.2 Significant estimate: key assumptions used for value-in-use
The Group tests whether goodwill bas suffered any impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of a Cash Generating Unit (CGU) is determined based on
valuc-in-use caleulations swhich require the use of assumptions. The calculations use cash flow projections based on tinancial budgets approved by management
covering a five-vear period. Cash flows beyond the five-vear period are extrapolared using the estimated growth tates stated below. These growth rates are consistent
with forecasrs neluded in industry reports specific to the industry in which each CGU operates.

The tollowing mable sets out the kev assamptions for those CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them. The values assigned to the key assumptions represent
manigement's assessment of futare trends in the relevant industries and have been on historical data from both external and internal sources.

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sales volame (%o annual growth rate) 2.00°% - 15.00% 2.00% - 15.00%
Long term growth rare (%) 3.00% - 5.00%, 3.00% - 5.00%,
Disconnn rate (¢, LLO0%0-15.000% 14.000%-15.00%,

Management has detenined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows:
Assumption Approach used to determining values

Sales volume Average annual growth rate over the five-vear forecast perind; based on pasr performance and

management's expectations of market development,
Long-term growth rare: This is the weighted average growth rate used 1o extrapolate cash rlows beyond the budget period. The
rates are consistent with furecasts included in indusrry reports.
Discount rates: Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments and the counniics in which they operate.

“T'te management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the carrving amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit.
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CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Al emmonints arv in Rupecs bics, unless otherwise stoted)

8. Details of internally generated intangible assets

Reconciliation of catrying amount Content Aspiration. Ai GATE Flix Softwate Total
Cost or deemed cost (Gross carrying amount)
Balance as at April 1, 2022 1,255.61 384.30 87.98 197.51 1,925.40
Additions during the vear 514.55 207.67 - 217.20 939.42
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,770.16 591.97 87.98 414.71 2,864.82
Additons during the vear 483.42 20113 1,094.12 1,778.67
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,253.58 793.10 | 87.98 _1,508.83 4,643.49
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2022 419,53 3723 022 49.99 516.97
Amortisation for the vear 74.13 38.49 12 20.66 141.40
Balance as at March 31, 2023 483.66 75.72 28.34 70.65 658.37
Amortisation for the year 172.30 39.34 5.14 30.91 290.69 |
Balance as at March 31, 2024 655.96 135.06 36.48 121.56 949.06
As at Macch 31, 2023 1,286.50 5i6.25 59.64 344.06 2,206.45 |
| As at March 31, 2024 1,597.62 658.04 J_ 51.50 1,387.27 3,694.43
$. Intangibles assets under development
Particul As at As at
articutars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 54811 38751
Add: Addition during the year 1,097.96 989,72
Less: Capitalised during the vear (1,436.97) __ (s829.19
Closing Balance 209.10 548.11
Intangible assets under development ageing schedule*;
T Amount in Capital Work Io Progress for a period of -
Particulars Less than 1 : , More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
As at March 31, 2024
Projects in progress 20010 - I 209.10
I L i{
L 209.10 - - - [ 209.10 |
Amount in Capital Work In Progress for a period of B !
Particulars Less than 1 More than 2 Total i
1-2 years 2-3 years
i year years
As at March 31, 2023
Projecis in progress 548.11 - 548.11
548.11 | - - - 548.11
“There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
(This space has beewr intentionally loft blank) : cale
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CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(W arionnts are in Rupees kacs, wisess adhonmise stated;

10 Non-cusrent financial assets

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Deposits with reraining maturity for more than 12 months from reporting daee frefer note () below) 817.28 4,355.39
Sceuriry deposits 291.37 25449
Note: 1,108.65 4,609.88

1. Includes deposits of Rs. 738.05 lacs (previous year: Rs. 373.22 lacs) pledged with various authoritics.

ii. The Group's exposure to credit and currency tisks are disclosed in note 35.

1

oy

Deferred tax assets (net)

As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Deterred tax assets (ner) {refer rote 61) 1,703.53 1,871.00
1,703.53 1,871.00

12 Non-current tax assets (net)

As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Advance tax (net of pr 187268 1.981.75
1,872.68 1,981.75
13 Gther non-current asseis
As at As at

March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Unsecarnd, considered good -
mol advances 16.00 LEN0
Propraed rene ~ 9.50
16.00 25.50

14 Tnveatori.s

As at hA.s at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Valied at lower of cost and net realisable value

Raw mate 7434 42.31
Finished g 1,187.21 1,183.57
st Preaision tor stow moviag inveatory - {0.00;
1,261.55 1,215.88

Note:
L. Includes rasy materials lving with third parties March 31, 2024: Rs. "4.34 lacs {Macch 31, 2023: Rs, 42.31 lacs).
ii. fnvenwoties ¢ pledged s securities for borrowings taken from banks (eefer note 24 and 28).

At Allinventories caregories represcar text books.

(Lits space has been intentimnally le dank)
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CL Educate Limiied
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Merch 31, 2024

(W amonntc e Roepecs a0, wineis atlormise = iten

15 Trade receivables

As ar As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured
Cunsiviered goud 649677 G003 19
Credivimpaired 2065.42 271.61
Less: Allowances for doubtful trade recelvables N 265.42) 271.61)
6,496.77 6,963.49
T' Outstanding for following periods from due date nfp;nyment
| | ! i x93
Particulars MNot Duc i 61 ‘Total
S c Less than | 6 months | 12 Years 2.3 Years Mote Than
6 months ta | years 3 years
[As 2t March 31, 2024 B 5 T i
— : B - T
Uadispured Tra eccivables: Considere —
Und ;s; ured Trade Receivables Crmsidered 36 129734 i 73740 43302 53.05 1041 5,945.15
o
Lndispuied Trade Recervablez which hav aus | -
¢ < Trade Recervabl 1\ vich have . 0.5 | 142 184 | 377
s
_ R | e TS,
T
de Receivables- credic impaired 1241 +.29 ] 182 12,67 38.38 175,65 265,42
| T =
Disputed Trade Recevables- Constdeed pond 0.57 275 DES 54398 547.85
1
cinecredicnk ) T : i . .
— |
crediv impanrer, § f | | )
| 3,396.62 1,304.43 | 741.94 “47.75 111.43 760.04 | 6,762.19
Lesso Allowances tos doahful trade receivables 265.42)
Tural tradc receivabis 6,496.77
| T Ourstanding for following petiods from due date ofﬁymem o B
o s " T §
Paricolas Not Duc ess Total
ranenis vl Bk 1-2 Years -3 Years 2-3 Years
| 6 n_wnths | to 1 years _ - l
As at March 31, 2023 [ | — |
ispuced Trade Receivabice- Considere : - ]
janimpuig Tadegsceiv:bigpionsidened 423403 1,136.08 145,79 418.06 369 325.15 6,356.70
H - 26.40 2840
(radispuned Trade Recuavables- eredic impaired 2103 2,48 19.21 l 2359 12.52 162.38 243.21
F - — I
Dazputed Prade Recervables- Considered good 2.99 =2 587 6056.79
Dispored Iarle Regervabie: o i .
W hich have sigmificanit increase m credir risk | |
L = 1 |
Dhispured T e Recenanlos- |
credit Lnpurcd =5 ) |
| 4,278.95 1,138.38 168.00 443.65 683.92 | ~ 521.8¢ 7,235.44)
Less: Allvwanacs o doubttul trade receivahles 271.01)
Total trade recevzble 6,963.49 |

Notes;

1) The Group's exposure o ere

d currency sisks and loss alicwances related to srade reccivables are disclosed i note 58.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normudly received in notmal operating cycle.
= y g Cy

i} Trade receivables are pledged as seevrides for borrowi

iaken tiom baoks [refer note 24 and 28).

Ay Refer note 31 for trade receivables from < lared parties.

1 This spuace bas beesi intenticaatly efh blank)




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(AL aneonsits are in Rugpers facs, wizss atherise tated)

16

17

Cash and cash equivalents

As at As ai
March 31, 2024 Match 31, 2023
Balances with banks
ON CUITENT account 1,847.15 224937
Depusits with original maturities of less than 3 months 2,171.72
Cash on hand 114.85 251.47
4,133.72 2,500.84
Nove:
(i) The Group’s exposure to liquidity risks are disclosed in note 38,
Bark balances other than cash and cash equivalents
- As at As at
Macch 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Unpaid dividend account- bank balance 2,54 2.56
Depuosits with original matunty for more than three months but remaining maturity of less than twelve months {refer note (i) below) 6,239.66 3,863.22
6,242.20 3,865.78
Novtes ¢
(i} Includes deposits of Rs, 46980 Lacs (previous years Rs. 6.43 lacs) pledged with various authoritics.
e Group™s exposurc t liquidity risks are disclosed in not. 38,
Loans - Current
As at As at -
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecuted, considered good
Leaans v envplovecs 85.36 24,77
- §5.30 94.77

Note:

i The Group's exposure to credit and currency risks are disclosed in note 58,

(Thix space has beer intentionally left blank)
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CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AL comamnts cre i R iners lacs,

s itfanvdse oded)

19 Other current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good unless stared otherwise

o Xs at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Contract asscts 63477 439.97
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 343.1) 208.96
Securiny deposits 7L 116.76
Other recetvabics (refer footmote i) 95832 o 698.39

2,007.93 1,464.08
Note: _

i, Includes receivables from business parmers.

L. The Growp's exposurc to credit znd curiency sisks are disclosed in note 38,

20 Other current assets
Unsecured, considered good

As at Asat
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Prepaid cxpenscs 153544 169140
Aulvances to suppliers 2231 95218
Sdvances ta einplovees 93.46 95.22
Advances o related parhes al.3t 61.31
Right-to-reurn asset LR o870
Zalance with saturory authocities 320.40 47687
2,837.76_ 3,345.68
Note:
@ Refer note 31 tor transactions with related party.
21 Dispasal group - Assets beld for sale
As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 202
Disposal group - Assets hield for sale (refer note below) I,SZSI)- . [,3Zm_
1,323.40 1,323.40
Note :
The assets held for sale censists of following :

(2} ©n Muscl: 16, 2017, the Group entered *nio a Business Transfer Agreement with I-Take Care Private Limited {the “Buyer’} to sell its Infrastrucrure Services business (the “Assers™ on
He starmp sale bast.. The proposed sale of business is consistent with the Group’s long-term strategy to discontinuc s K-12 business. As on date, transaction is cancelled as T-Take

= hasn't beer. abre 1 wtange the requisite funds o closs the sale, accordingly, advance received has been refunded. Also, the Management is in parallel discussions

ther partics o koear i ileanare saver to give effect to the disposal of the Asseis. As the deluy is caused by the events and circumstances beyvond the Group’s control and that
Mancgament rerains cotnmitted t irs plan to sell the Assets and the Group continues to disclose suck Assets as "Disposal group-Assets held fo

Non-Cuarrct Assete held for Sale rad Discontinued Operations”.

Preware L

sale” In accordance with Ind AS

(Tiis space b £ 571 o ielly Left ik s
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Loty i sttt

W comzounis ap iz Rovipecs e

22 Share capital

As at
Magch 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2024
Authorised
H00,000 00 PMarch 31, 2023 5,00,00,0010 equaty <hares of Rs. 3 cach {reler note 68 4000,00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
393 (Maren 31, 2023

S0,68,312) equity shares of Rs. 3 cach, fully paid up 2,702.62
a. Terms and rights attached to equity shares
Voting

Eacl holder of cquin

hare is cntitded to one vote per share held.

“The Holdiag Company declures and pays dividend i Indian rupees. The dividend propessd by the Board of Directors is subiect w approvad of the sharcholders
exceptin the case where interim dividend is distributed.

Liguidation

In the event of liguidaton of the olding ¢

vpany, the halders of cquity shases shall be entitled o receive all of the romaining as
avounts, ifaey. Such distribution ameounts will be in proportion to the number of cauity shares held by the sharcholders.

is of the lolding Campany

o

- Reconcilistion of number of shares ourstanding at the beginning «nd end of the yoar :

ERETIRGH]

in ensuing Annual General Meeting

, after distribution of all preferental

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Nou. of shares Aniount " No. of shares Amount
Avthe brginning ot ta: year - e 273342 - ____’ f 336 -
Share extingished on buy back {refer noe 67 {3248 (7972000
Lssue of Bonus s ot 68) 275,34, 156
Issue af shares ander ISOT feefer note 353 33556 1.68
Ovtstanding ar the +nd of the year 5,40,52,393 2,702.62 5,50,68,312
st e a—:
«. Details of sharcholders holding mote than 5% shates ir the Holding Company:
_ As at March 31, 2024 As at Masch 2023
No. of shares Percentage No. of ghares Percentage
M osava Naravamae R 99,34.8532 Lo 2, 99,534,822
M. Gaviam P 94,28, 520 744" 94 28 5200
i e fanuted ; G.200% 30,21 B4
P i craent Nan rem P i {along with its 42,311,288 7B 44,310,258
s Aeverin Concern Le Arena Fund Pre. L
G Tedig Tamatad 24,835,892 5.534°% 3785592 0.8
3,16,31,37 58.52% 3,26,21,372 59.24%
d. Details of shares licld by promaters in the Holding Company:
o AsaiMarch 31,2024 B AsatMasch 31,2023 i
No. of shses % of total *a change during No. of shares 2% of total %e change during
shares the year shares ihe year
Naine of Promo.or T T
Mr. 3arya Nacwanan R 99,534,832 18,420, [ 96,34 832 U6l
Mr. Gautam Puri 428,520 17440, [V XN
Mr. R Shivakumar 14,.28,724 2644, [IRUSLNS (X1
ar. cnivasan 14,14792 2.62%, Q.00 i4,14792 (LN
“r. Sujit Bhateacharvya 8,12.24% 1,507 0.00%. 8,12.248 [47% Q005
Ale Nikhil Mahajan 1,310,468 .24% 10.00%% 131,488 024 e
Bilakes oncuinny Povate Lurited 30,21,840 9.29, 50.21.840 9.12% (O
2,81,92,424 52.15% 2,81,92,424 51.19%%
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12 onmrmants arc i Rogpees faev. i< atho . it

. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

i The Holding Company has lsned cquity shares 141,65 078 o fully paid up wichaur paveens being reveived m eashs duriog the finameial vears 2018 19w 2022 23 eprevivns gear 2017 18 to 2021 22),

b

on exereise of eprions granted under the employee stoek option plans wherem part consideranon was reccived in form of emploves services.

i The Haoidmg Conpany has issued equiny sh:

rarepaning 33,556 (Mareh 31, 2023 NilY of Rs, 14 each falk: paid up during the fi

anctal years 2018 19 1o 2022 23 (rroviovs vear: 2017-1% ¢ 202127,

~

i 3136 {previous year: 2,75,34,156) equity shares has been issued by way of bonus shares during the Financial vears 2008-19 0 2022-23 {previens year: 2017-18 o 2021-22),

™

18,460,675 {previous year: 7,97,200) equity shares have been buought back by the Company during the period of five vears immediazele preceding the reportng date.

=

For Details for share reserved for issuc under the employee stock aption of the Haoldiaz Compan, {refer to note 355
Py F : pan;

23 Other equity As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

23.1 Retained earnings
Bulance az the beginning of the vear (L0284 {3,032.18)
Add: Profit fer the year 1,509.01 2,253.39

Add: Other comprehensive income (net of ax)

asarement of defined bencfie plans 4.43 34
v-pack tax paid 16%01) 20203
pueing adivstnent in foreigm substdiary# (33.167

Balance ut the end of the year 331.59 (1,012.84)

urities premiwm

czinnimy of the year 2752213 29,536.85
“ailen b fer by -hack (841,561 960,01

e o monas share 13767

st eranster to capital redemption r (5248
Share issued under ESOP 20.94
Halanee at the end of the year 26,649.03 27,522.13
233 Amalramation Adjustment reserve
Balance at the beginning/end of the year (2,264.54) {2,264.34)
.+ General reserves
Balance at the beginning/end of the year 36.95 36,95

23.5 Share option outstanding account
S

s embies ce steck compensation for options granted in earlier vears

Add. Gross edmpen o fot opticns fot the war 7683

Les s Transr o sccurity premion on HSOP issued

Balance at the end of the year - == 76.85
quity component of compound finu

Bairnee wi the end of the year 4.88 4.85

25,7 Deemned equity
Bal

< at the beginning of the vear 850

Addi Addiion during the year -

Bulance at the end of vhe year

23.8 Capital reszrves
ice a* the ene of the vear 0.20 0.20
£3.2 Capital red ion reserves
Fdance ac the beganing of the year
Add: amount transier duri 5248
Balance at he ead of the year 52.48 -
Other henzive income
Forgeipn cuttency translation reserve
Balance at the beginniag «.f the vear 24159 82.587
Add: Exchange difference 38.62 199.02
Balance at the end nf the year 320.21 251.59
Total equity attributable to owners 25,358.48 24,723.69
—— —
Non-contralling interest reserve
Balance ar the beginning of the vear 1.27
Add: Addidon oa conversion from associte to subsidiary (281.82)
Add: Add.tinn during the year ——-—"1.81 2403
Balance at the end of the year (208.74) 1.27

Total resetves and surplus 25,149.74 24,724.96
— —_——
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LM st o i Faspens baes, santfess st v hd)

(i)

(i)

@i

(viif}

%)

Nature and purposc of reserves

Retained eamings

Creoted trem profiz/ loss of the Company, as idjusred for disibutions o owaers and trunsier v othe: teserve,

Securides premium

deeunties prami

¢ has been rrearsd upon issue oF stazes ar premivm Fhe seserve shat be efhecd inacesdance «

b the provisiens of he Companies e, 2013,

Amzlgamation adjustment reserve

wdjustments of nei a-set ransterzed o amalgamated company

Amalgamarnion adjustment deticit account is u rese

Ared as amalgamation adjustment defick account.

onaccount

negatve carrving virlue of nerassers rransferred, theretore amaon

pre

General reserve

"The Greup appropriates & purtion 7 general teserves cut of the profits erther as per the requirenients oof the Compy

wies \er 2013 (et} or voluntazily to mest funure contingeacies, [he said reserve is
avalable for payment of dividend e the sharebaolders as per the provisions of the Companics e, 2013,

Share option outstanding account
The Grovp h

eter 10 Nune 33 for further

2

citled sharc-based p:

ment plans tor ceria;

alegaties of e

plovees of the Company tails on these plans,

Dcerned equity

Deemia equity arising our of Ginancal guaraniee recerved from its promeoters.

Capital rosecve

Ciie capital peaen e was qenerated on account of acquis

1 ol ersewhile Paragon classes in the FY
el

Capleat -

\s per {7

"mptmn resene
fen Aer, 201

«reansieered o

.

apital rodemptiar rose

s ity own ohires cur ¢ free rescrves o1 seeund

s created whei comapany pu ies premiun. A sum cqual o the conunal value of the shares so

-apita] redemptinn reserve. The reserve < utilised in acrd rdane= with the provsions o) section 64 ot the Companies Aet, 2013

e

Furespn vutrency teanslation reserve

Ty Group eppropriates s pornoa to general seseeves out of the prol

s e per che requiremeats o the Compantes et 2013 (A or voluntnly o meer tutuie contingencies. The said reserve bs

gen
avee n. o the e

T fer prymeat of

Adend e the sharehriders as por the prove

T s cronte O Agio o

& Pre. Lad” wholly owned subsidiary, restatement is cariied out by the managunent due w immaterial ervor which has resulted in decrease in rerained carnings.

Nemr-cuarent borrowings

Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Seruted Ican
Trom banks
Lol foans aefer note 4 88.09 96.27
2 doans ‘refer nete iy 56,51
From financia) instirutions
A zioans frefer note il SL7
Teral non-carvent borgawings 152.7¢
uris it maturinics of nen cutrenr bors wings {included in ncse 28) 82,44
Lese, Inrer st aecrued but not due an borrowings (included in note 28; 082
MNon-carreat borrowings {2s per balance sheet)
69.52

The G

hiclz loan from banks

ave disclosed in note 38,

UP'S CXplsire 16 cleney tisks, liguichte deks and nterest

= loan from bank are secured against hypathecation of concerned vehicles. The vehrele loan from hanks carry interest rate in the range of 90" » 10 918 o per wnun: (31 March, 2023 : 790" o
475 v per anmumy). The weighted average remaining ten e for these ke ans is 3.33 vears (March 31, 2023 ; 2,92 yearsy; with 2 total equal monthly installment ¢f Rs. 2.8% lacs per monrh (Murch 51, 2023 .
Rs. 3.t daes per month).

(Vhis spere hrac been atentionalfy kft 3 nk)

New Delhi
110044
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(AL anonnts are in Rupees lacs, unless othervise stated)

24

ii.

Non-cutrent borrowings (continued from previous page)

Secured term loans from bank

b) HDFC Bank
The Holding Company had taken a term loan from HDFC Bank under Emergency Credit Line Guaranteed Scheme (ECGLS). During the previous year, the Holding

ii.

25

26

27

Company has completely paid off the balances of Rs. 56.51 lacs.
Interest rate:
(i) These loans cartied interest at 8.80% per annum.

Repayment schedule:

(i} The loan was repayable in 36 monthly installments after ptinciple moratotium of 12 month. The repavment of installments has commenced from December 7, 2021

and the last installment paid on April 25, 2023,

Secured vehicle loans from financial institutions

Vehicle loan from NBFC's are secured against hypothecation of concerned vehicles. The vehicle loan carry interest rate of 10.25% per annum . The remaining tenure

for this loans is 4.33 years; with a equal monthly installment of Rs. (.28 lacs per month.

. The term loans have been used for the specific purpose for which they are taken as at the year end.

Non-curtent lease liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lease labilities (refer note 49) 828.62 336.24
828.62 336.24
Non-current provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 50)
Gratuiry 377.04 331.20
Compensated absences 218.89 232.02
595.93 563.22
Other non-current liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contract liabilities 169.84 I87.75
169.84 187.75

(This spuce has been intentionatly lefl blank)

,./60,2"319 <

/
[ New Dehhi \=:
O\ 10044 Jo!
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(AL aronnts are in Rupees lacs, unless othenvise stated)

28 Current borrowings

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured
- From banks
- Cash credit (refer note 1 below) 1,825.22 851.70
Unsecured
- from related parties 20.65 20.92
- from others (tefer note ii below) 14241 19.57
Current maturities of non-current term loan from banks - 56.51
Current maturities of non-current vehicle loan 2791 5.93
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 0.36 0.82
2,016.55 975.45

The Group's exposure to currency risks, liquidity risks and interest rate risks are disclosed in note 58.

Notes:

(i) Details of these loans are as follows:

Cash credit represents overdrafes from HDFC Baok Limited and Indusind Bank Limited which are repayable on demand. Cash credi facility from ICICI Bank
Limited was closed in June 2022.

(a) Details of loan taken from HDFC Bank Limited
The Holding Company had entered into a finance facility agreement with limit amounting Rs. 750.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 750.00 lacs) with HDFC Bank as an
overdraft facility. The outstanding balance as on March 31, 2024 is Rs. 134.97 lacs ( previous year: Rs. 297.45 lacs)

Intetrest rate

P

Thesc loans carry interest at bank's fixed deposit rate + 0.5 to 0.75%0 (March 31, 2023: bank's base rate + 3.75%0) per annum,

Repayment schedule
The overdraft facilitics is only for 1 year tenure.

Security

These borrowings are secured by wav of fixed deposits where as in previous year, it was secured by way of first and exclusive charge on all present and future current
and moveable asscts including moveable fixed assets of the Holding Company.

(bl Details of loan taken from ICICI Bank Limited

The Group has closed its cash credir facility for LAS account in June'22 wirh limit amounting Rs. 1,000.00 lacs with ICICI Bank Timited.
Interest rate

These facility carry interest ar bank's base rate + 0.20% (March 31, 2023: bank's base rate + 0.20%) per annum,

Security

The facility was secured by the Mutual Funds taken by the Holding Company.

(e) Details of loan taken from IndusInd Bank Limited
The Holding Company had entered into a finance facility agreement with limit amounting Rs. 1,850.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,850.00 lacs) with Indusind Bank as
an cash credit facility. The outstanding balance as on March 31, 2024 is Rs. 1,587.32 lacs ( previous year: Rs. 554.25 lacs)

Interest rates
2. 10.65% p.a from October 04, 2020 which was further changed to a range of 9.5% to 11.19% in current year on cash credit limit from IndusInd Bank Limited.

Primary security

First and exclusive charge on entire current assces of the Holding Company both present and future for cash eredit from Indusind Bank.
Collateral security

a. Lien on fixed deposits amounting Rs. 462.50 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs 370400 lakhs).

b. First and exclusive charge on movable fixed assets of the Holding Company both present and future,
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(AN amonnts are in Rupees lucs, nuntess otherwise stated)

(ii) Details of unsecured loans

Loan taken from Phoenix Academy at an interest rate of 8.25 %6 to 9.30 Yo per annum by one of the Subsidiary "TCE Gare Educational Institute Private Limited and at
an interest rate of 10.40% per annum from directors of "Career Launcher Private Limited". The said loan is repavable on demand.

(iif) Details of quartetly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Holding Company with banks and reasons:

For the year ended 31 March 2024:

Name of bank Quarter ended |Particulars of [Arount as per  |[Amount as Amount of |[Remarks/reasons (if any)
securities books of reported in the |difference
provided accounts quarterly
statement
IndusInd Bank Limited lune 30, 2023 Pari-passu 8,566.53 8,649.33 (82.80) | The variance is majotly on account of]
charge on advance teceived from customer which is
current asscts being adjusted against reccivables in the
books of accounts and expected credit loss
allowance which is not being considered in
the stock stacement submitted to bank.
Indusind Bank Limited September 30, | Pari-passu 9,191.30 9,278.43 (87.13) [The variance is majorly on account of]
2023 charge on advance received from customer which s
current assets being adjusted against receivables in the
books of accounts and expected credit loss
allowance which is not being considered in
the stock statement submitted to bank.
IndusInd Bank Limited December 31,  |Pari-passu 8,481.99 8,892.90 (410.91) |The variance is majorly on account of]
2023 charge on advance reccived from customer which is
current assets being adjusted against receivables in the
books of accounts and expected credit loss
allowance which is not being considered in
the stock statement submitted to bank.
IndusInd Bank Limited March 31, 2024 | Pari-passu 8,372.92 8,384.61 (11.69) |The variance is majorly on account of|
charge on advance received from customer which is
current assets being adjusted against receivables in the
books of accounts and expected credit loss
allowance which is not being considered in
the stock statement submitted to bank.
(iv) Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:
Particulars Borrowings Lease liabilities
(Refer (a) below) (Refer (b) below)
Balance as at April 1, 2022 1,697.33 315,53
Interest expense 53.73
Loan taken from related party 20.31 -
Loan repayments (net)/lease repayments (including interest) (672.67) (289.48)
Other non cash changes - 341.53
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,044.97 621.31
Interest expense 91.40 112.63
lease repayments (including interest) - (386.85)
Loan proceeds 968.33
Other non cash changes 3.44 7460.72
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,108.14 1,093.81
//'
,-'/ y S
:(’ ,r/
| |
\ \ /
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(a)
As at As at
Borrowings March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
-Curreat (refer note 28) 2,016.55 975.45
-Non-Current (refer note 24) 91.59 69.52
2,108.14 1,044.97
()
As at As at
Lease liabilities Match 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
-Current (refer note 29) 263.19 285.07
-Non-Current (refer note 25) 828.62 336.24
1,093.81 621.31
Lease liabilities - cutrent
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lease liabilities (refer note 49) 265.19 285.07
265.19 285.07
Trade payables
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues to micro and small enterptises (refer note 53) 76.84 155.71
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3,255.97 3,883.89
3,332.81 4,039.60
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particul, Not D Total
artieniars orme Less than 1-2 Yeats 2-3 Years More Than ota
1year 3 years
As at March 31, 2024
Total ()Prstand1ng dues of mlFr(: 76.84 . . . 76.84
cnrerprises and small enterptises
Total outstanding ducs of
creditors other than micro 1,386.53 1,390.91 233.22 185.05 60.26 3,255.97
enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed Dues of micro ) .
caterprises and small enterprises
Disputed Dues of ereditots other
than micro enterprises and small - - - -
enterprises
Total 1,463.37 1,390.91 233.22 185.05 60.26 3,332.81
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(Al amomnts are in Rupees lacs, npdess othenvise stated)

Outstanding fot following periods from due date of payment
Particul Not D 2 Total
articulars ot Due Less than 1.2 Years 2.3 Years Motre Than otal
1 year 3 years
As at March 31, 2023
Total O}Jtsmndmg dues of micro 155,71 155.71
enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro 1,870.92 1,343.10 402.45 215.50 51.92 3,883.89
enterprises and small enterptises
Disputed Dues of micro B _
enterprises and small enterprises
Dispured Dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small - - - - - -
enterprises
Total 2,026.63 1,343.10 402.45 215.50 51.92 4,039.60
Note:
i. Refer note 33 for dues to micro and small enterpriscs.
ii. The Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables are disclosed in note 58.
1ii. Other creditors are non interest bearing and are normally settled in normal trade cycle.
31 Other current financial liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unpaid dividends (refer note it) 2.54 2.56
Employee related payables 863.47 851.81
Advances from customers 154.63 -
Payable to selling shareholders 28.06 28.06
Receipts on behalf of dlients 1333 29.61
1,062.03 912.04

Note:

i. The Group's exposure to cutrency risks, liquidity tisks and interest rate risks are disclosed in note 58.

ii. Unpaid dividend arc outstanding from financial year 2018-19.
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32

33

34

Other current liabilities

Contract liabilities

Statutory dues pavable

Refund liability created against right-to-retarn
Other payables

Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 50)
Gratuity

Compensated absences

Cutrent tax liabilities (net)

Provision for income-tax (net of advance tax)

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,968.41 1,390.68
213.51 320.62
123.55 85.87
61.59 18.99
2,367.06 2,316.16
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
3591 24.85
7540 45.31
131.31 70.16
As at As at
March 31, 2024 Maich 31, 2023
9293 49.26
92.93 49.26
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35 Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Sale of products:

Text books 4,358.06 391170
Sale of services:

Liducation and training programmes 14,013.64 12,531.04
Event management services 11,821.01 11,535.79
Advertising income 1,650.56 L,126.10

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 12.12 26.76

31,855.39 29,131.39

Disaggregated revenue information as per geographical markets

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Geographical martkets

Particulats India Ovetseas Total
Education and training programmes 13,254.71 758.93 14,013.64
Sale of text books 3,907.33 450,73 4,358.06
Event management services 8,499.05 3,321.96 11,821.01
Advertising income 1,604.03 46.53 1,650.56
Scrap sales 12.12 - 1212
27,277.24 4,578.15 31,855.39

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Geographical markets

Particulars India Overseas Total
Education and training programmes 11,972.65 558.39 12,531.04
Sale of text books 3,426.27 485.43 3,911.70
FEvent management services 9,672.66 1,863.13 11,535.79
Advertising income 1,126.10 - 1,126.10
Scrap sales 26.76 - 26.76
26,224.44 2,906.95 29,131.39
Changes in contract liability are as follows:- Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,078.43 1,760.85
Revenue recognised that was deducted from trade receivables as unearned revenue (1,890.68) (1,563.44)

balance at the beginning of the year

Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amount recognised as revenue during 2,003.64 1,928.38

Reclassification of unearned revenue that is not yet collected in cash (53.15) (47.37)
from trade receivables

Balance at the end of the yeat 2,138.25 2,078.43

Note :

1. Opening balance of contract liabilities is inclusive of unearned revenue not yet collected in cash from trade receivables.

2. Contract liabilities are associated with educational and training programmes provided to students and institutional customers. However, there
is increased in the contract liabilities due to increased in revenue of the Group.
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(<14 anonnis are in Rupees lacs, nnless othernise staled)

11.

Revenue from operations (continued from ptevious page)

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied)

Within one year

More than one year

Changes in contract assets are as follows:-

Balance at the beginning of the year
Revenue recognised that was deducted from trade receivables as unearned revenue
balance at the beginning of the year

Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amount recognised as revenue during
the year (includes trade receivable and conttact assets)

Credit impaired
Balance at the end of the year

Revenue as an agent

Particulars

Amount paid/pavable on behalf of various customers during the vear
Amount of fees/commission/related charges forming part of the revenue for the vear

(This space bas beew intentionally left blank)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,968.41 1,890.68
169.84 187.75
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7,403.46 5,832.52
(7,403.46) (5,832.52)
7,396.96 7,675.07
(265.42) (271.61)
7,131.54 7,403.46
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

48.49
3.35
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36

37

38

Other income

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised costs
- Security deposits
- Fixed deposits
- Income tax refunds
Others*
Income on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss
-Gain on sale of mutual funds
Liabilities no longer required written back
Rental income on investment properties (refer note 5)
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations
Subsidy received from Government
Claim recovered*
Gain on modification and termination of leases

Miscellaneous income

* Claim realised from " Crest Education Private Limited" on account of favourable order received during the year from Honourable Delhi

High Court.

Cost of materials consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases during the vear (Refer note i)
Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Sub-total (A)

Printing costs
Sub-total (B)

Total (A+B)
Notes:
(i) Details of purchases are as follows:

Paper purchased

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Text books

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
15.69 16.81
623.41 296.02
3441 16.87
28.68 3.91
91.30
306.18 90.35
18.00 18.00
20.05 51.94
- 17.81
243.71
56.17 -
39.28 37.06
1,385.58 640.07
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
42.31 21.31
598.93 426.32
(74.34) (42.31)
566.90 405.32
375.23 347.78
375.23 347.78
942.13 753.10
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 Maztch 31, 2023
598.93 426.32
598.93 426.32
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
19.65 35.49
19.65 35.49

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Changes in inventories of finished goods

Inventories at the end of the year

-Tinished goods

-Impact of right to return assets (refer note 20)
Total

Inventories at the beginning of the year
-Finished goods (refer note ii)

-Impact of right to return assets (refer note 20)
Total

Net decrease/(increase) in inventories

Note:

1. Right to return assets indicates the cost component of expected retutns recognised.

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 50)

Expenses related to post-cmployment defined benefit plans (refer note 50)

Expenses related to compensated absences
Employee stock options expense (refer note 55)
Staff welfare

Finance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

-on vehicle loans

-on term loans

-on overdrafts
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 49)
Other borrowing costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (tefer note 7)
Depreciation on investment property (refet note 5)

Depreciation on Right-of-use of assets (tefer note 4)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 Mazch 31, 2023
1,187.21 1,183.57
98.84 68.70
1,286.05 1,252.27
1,169.77 1,407.43
68.70) 79.30
1,238.47 1,486.73
(47.58) 234.46
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4,406.00 4,066.22
183.88 186.34
107.45 87.37
39.05 67.89
90.75 76.85
268.55 171.30
5,095.68 4,655.97
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
5.89 7.56
0.69 45.31
84.82 8.81
13.55 1.37
112.63 53.73
28.41 43.62
245.99 160.40
Year ended Year ended
Match 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
126.08 103.22
942.67 766.13
5.76 5.75
308.13 24143
1,382.64 1,116.53
———
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43 Service delivery expenses

Franchisee expenses

Project expenses

Faculty expenses
Communication expenses
Digiral learning support expenses
Material printing cost

44 Sales and marketing expenses

Advertisement expenses
Digital marketing expenses

Business promotion expenses

45 Other expenses

Repairs to:
-Buildings

-Others

Insurance

Rates and taxes
Rent (refer note 49)

Legal and professional chatges (refer note i below)

Travelling and conveyance

Office expenses

Sales incentive

Sundry balances written off
Equipment hire expenses

Bad debts written off

Provision for expected credit loss
Freight and cartage outward

Foreign exchange loss (net)
Commission to non-executive directors

Consumption of packing matetials

Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 52)

Miscellaneous expenses

Year ended Year ended
Match 31, 2024 Match 31, 2023
7,523.83 6,339.65
8,447.15 8,783.27
473.04 297,73
295.27 276.68
236.98 195.17
155.35 127.62
17,131.62 16,040.12
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,210.17 857.28
956.06 1,015.93
267.75 230.30
2,433.98 2,103.53
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
62.87 79.03
131.83 82.03
42.55 46.54
51.78 101.89
196.95 184.20
626.39 538.04
362.42 210.24
740.02 626.28
89.19 61.75
19.83 18.64
103.94 95.32
1,204.34 465.80
39.24 31.71
55.61 44,89
15.15 6.91
30.60 11.98
11.75 19.06
8.30 49.73
83.36 66.88
3,876.12 2,740.92




CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(1 amonsits are in Rupees lacs, unless othermise stated)

Note:
i) Payment to auditors (excluding GST)

Statutory audit
Other services
Out of pocket expenses

46 Exceptional Items

47

Sale proceeds from properties*

Less : written down value

Less : Expenses incurred on transfer of properties
Profit on sale of property (a)

Loans and advances written off

Loss on sale of investments (refer note 6() D)
Expense on sale of investments

Property, plant and equipment discarded
Receivables written off (refer note 65)
Provision of investments in subsidiary

Write back

Year ended
Match 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

49.00
21.80
4.75

41.00
13.00
1.01

75.55

55.01

6,836.71
(3,936.45)
(442.46)

134.95

2,457.80
(1,214.60)
(568.69)
(18.00
(14,98)
(361.18)
(296.00)

134.95

(15.65)

*During the previous year, the Holding Company has completed the process of sale of the property held at Greater NOIDA. The sale has
been approved by the Board Members and Audit Committee in its meeting held on May 19, 2022. In the previous year, the Holding Company
has classified lease hold land amounting to Rs. 168.14 lacs (net of lease liability) and Building amounting to Rs. 2,103.19 lacs located at Greater

NOIDA assets held for sale.

Such property has been sold during the previous year, the expenses incurred in relation to sale of property, other receivables and impairment in
the investments in subsidiary has been set off with profit on sale of property considering the exceptional nature of the items.

Earnings per share

(2) Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders
From discontinuing operations attributable to the equity holders

(b) Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders
I'rom discontinuing operations attributable to the equity holders

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

4.08

4.08
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(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share
Profit/ (loss) attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic and diluted carnings per share:

From continuing operations 1,580.82
From discontinuing operations (0.23)

No of shares

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of cquity shares used as the denominator in caleulating basic
carnings per share 5,47,00,999

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings pet share:
Stock Options Plan 1,69,692

Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share 5.48.70,691

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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A.

ii)

iv)

Contingent liabilities, capital commitments and litigations

Commitments As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital - -
account and not provided for (net of advances)

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts (refer note 2) 3,181.00 1,814.68
3,181.00 1,814.68

Note a: Details of claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts (refer note (i))

Service tax matters Matters in dispute/under appeal for various years 1,077.89 1,077.89
Goods and Service tax matters Matters in dispute/under appeal for various years$ 1,412.23 -
Income-tax matters Matters in dispute/under appeal fot various years* 62549 671.44
Other cases Matters in dispute/under appeal # 65.39 65.39

3,181.00 1,814.68
Remarks:

() The management is of the opinion that, based on issues decided in the earlier vears and the legal advice that the ultimate outcome of the legal
proceedings in respect to tax matters, as given above will be in favour of the Group and also will not have material adverse effect to the financial
position of the Group. It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution
tor respective proceedings.

$ Includes, show cause notices received from the Directorate General of GST Intelligence amounting to Rs. 1,281 lacs related to supply of Books
as a part of composite supply of Commercial coaching services. The Holding Company had won a similar ruling in the Supreme Court under the
erstwhile Service Tax regime. The Holding Company believes that it has discharged all the relevant GST liabilities in compliance with the applicable
laws and has filed a reply to the notice with the concerned authorities.

* This does not includes the income tax amounting to Rs. 1,696.20 lacs in respect of AY 2021-22 and AY 2022-23 respectively as such demand is
erroneously raised based on the contingent liability disclosed in the financials statement and a rectified order has been received during the year.

# Other cases

Triangle Fducation, then a franchisee of the Holding Company in Jaipur, had arbitrarily terminated the agreement and started a competing
business using a brand of CL Educate Limited. The Sole arbitrator has passed the final order partially in favour of the Holding Company. Further,
the Hon'ble Delhi High Court passed an order thereby restraining Triangle Education from using the trade mark LST/Ex-LST in any form, but
Triangle Education violated these orders and hence the Holding Company has filed a contempt petition against the respondent before Delhi High
Court and the matter is fixed for argument on July 31, 2024,

The Director of Industries and Commerce cum Chairman MSE- Chandigarh has sent a notice amounting Rs. 12.31 lacs (March 31, 2023: Rs.12.31
lacs including interest of Rs. 3.30 lacs) on behalf of Reivera Fabricators regatding non payment of dues on account of uniforms supplied to Indus
World Schools. An award was passed against the Holding Company by the District Level Micto and Small Enterprises Facilitation Council,
Ludhiana. CL Educate has filed a petition secking setting aside of the Impugned Award. The next date of hearing is scheduled on July 7, 2024.

Bawadia kala shikisha samiti, a lessor has filed a case against the Holding Company in Bhopal for recovery of rent /arrears amounting Rs. 46.88
lacs (Previous year Rs. 40.88 lacs) for non payment of rent. The Holding Company was engaged a local lawyer who filed necessary application to
transfer the case to New Delhi as the rent agreement has arbitration clause, which states that the matter will be decided in New Delhi. The matter
is fixed for argument on May 13, 2024.

A student, has filled a case against the Holding Company for refund of fees amounting Rs. 6.20 lacs {(March 31, 2023: Rs. 6.20 lacs) on the ground
that he paid fees to Brilliant Tutorials considering the fact that the Holding Company had a tie-up witly Brilliant Tutorial which was subsequently
called off by the Holding Company. The matter is fixed for final argument on July 8, 2024.
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v)

49

a)

Apart from those disclosed above, the Group has certain ongoing litigations involving customers, vendors and employees. Based on legal advice of
in-house legal tream, the management believes that no material liability will devolve on the Group in respect of these litigations.

Other litigations

In the financial year 2009-10, the Holding Company had given a franchisce to Ms Monica Oli in the name of Comprehensive Education and TT
Training Institute to provide test preparation services in Dubai (UAT). In the financial year 2012-13, the Holding Company had tetminated the
franchise agreement on account of non-tecovery of fees collected by the franchisee from students. At the time of the cancellation of agreement the
total amount of reccivables from and payable to Ms Monica Ol were AED 1,019,842 (Rs. 150.88 lacs) and AED 261,318 (Rs. 38.66 lacs)
respectively. The Holding Company had prefetred arbitradon in the matter and the Hon'ble Arbitrator has passed an award amounting AED
2,063,267 (equivalent to Rs. 351.37 lacs) in favour of the Holding Company including damages. The Holding Company had obtained the necessary
execution documents trom the Delhi High Court and sent these documents through the Indian Embassy for depositing in the Dubai Courts for
exccution. The matter was appealed by Ms Monica Oli in the Delhi High Court and the same ruled in her favour. The Holding Company has
appealed the ruling and the same is fixed for hearing in front of the Division Bench of High Court on August 28, 2024

Leases

The Group has applicd Ind AS 116 with the date of initial application of April 1, 2019. As a result, the Group has changed its accounting policy for
lease contracts (Refer note 2(xi)). The adoption of this new standard has resulted in the Group recognising a right-of-usc assets and related lease
liability in connection with all former operating leases except for those identified as low value or having a lease term of less than 12 months. The
Group applicd Ind-AS 116, leases using the modified retrospective approach.

Group as "Lessee"

The Group has leasing agreements in respect of operating leases for its various office premises and warehouses. These lease arrangements are for a
period between 12 months to 60 months and include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases.

Lease liabilities

The movement in lease liabilities are as follows :

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 621.31 515.53
Addition during the year 960.87 341.53
Finance cost accrued during the period 112.63 53.73
Payment of lease liabilities* (386.85) (289.48)
Reversal on account of modification/ termination of lease (214.15) -
Closing Balance 1,093.81 621.31
Non-current Lease liabilities (refer note 25) 828.62 336.24
Current Lease liabilities (refer note 29) 265.19 285.07
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ii  The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities are as follows :

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non As on March 31, 2024

cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: Lease Payments Finance Charges Net present Value
Not later than one year 289.06 23.87 265.19
Tater than one year and not later than five years 903.20 74.58 828.62
Total 1,192.26 98.45 1,093.81
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non As on March 31, 2023

cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: Lease Payments Finance Charges Net present Value
Not later than one year 329.53 44.46 285.07
Tater than one vear and not later than five years 363.88 27.64 336.24
Total 693.41 72.10 621.31

b) For disclosures in respect of Right-of-use assets, refer note 4

c) Short term lease

The Holding Company used the following practical expedient when applying Ind AS-116, leases.
- Applied the exemptions not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for lease with less than 12 months of term lease.
- Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate of lease.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expenses relating to short term leases (included in other expense) 196.95 184.20

B. Group as a lessor
The Group has leased certain cancellable operating lease to one of its franchisee.
Rental income recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss during the year amounting Rs.18.00 lacs (March 31, 2023; Rs. 18.00 lacs).

(This space has been intentionally left Mank) /
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Employee benefits
The Group contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.

Defined Contribution Plans:

The Group makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund and state
insurance, which are defined contribution plans. The Group has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to
the statement of profit and loss as they accrue.

Year ended Year ended
Mazrch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Employers contribution to provident fund 183.24 184.91
Employers contribution to state insurance 0.64 1.43
183.88 186.34
(ii)) Defined Benefit Plan:
Gratuity

The Group operates a post-employment defined benefit plan for Gratuity. Plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Gratuity Act,
employees are entitled to specific benefit at the tme of retirement or termination of the employment on completion of five vears or dearh while in employment.
This plan entitles an employee to receive half month's salaty for cach year of completed service ac the time of retirement/cxit. The Group contributes to a trust
see up by the Group which further contributes to a policy taken from the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The present value of obligation is determined
bascd on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognize each period of service as giving rise to additional emplovee benefit
entitlement and mecasures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

A, Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Group’s
financial statements as at balance sheet date:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net defined benefit (asset)/liability
Gratuity 432.95 356.05
Total employee benefit liabilities 432.95 356.05
Non-current 77.04 331.20
Current 55.91 24.85
B. Movement in net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Defined benefit  Fair value of Net defined Defined Fair value of plan Net defined
obligation plan assets benefit benefit assets benefit
(asset)/ liahility obligation (asset)/ liability

Balance at the beginning of the year 402.35 (46.30) 356.05 350.31 (35.01) 315.30
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 81.23 81.23 68.81 - 68.81
Interest cost (income) 27.62 (1.40) 26.22 22.37 (3.81) 18.56

108.85 (1.40) 107.45 91.18 (3.81) 87.37
Included in Other comprehensive
income
Remeasurements loss (gain)
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- financial assumptions 7.42 - 742 (17.31)) - (17.30)
- demographic adjustment - - - - -
- experience adjustment (12.18) - (12.18) 12.59 - 12.59
Return on plan assets (1.24) - (1.24) (.34 0.03 (.37

(6.00) - (6.00) (4.37) 0.03 (4.34)

Other
Contributions paid by the emplover - (22.31) (22.31) - (58.96) {(58.96)
Fund management charges - - - 0.45 045
Admin charges - (3.77) (3.77) (1.85) (1.85)
Acquisition adjustment Qut 0.10) 0.74 0.84) 22.27 (4.07) 18.20
Benefits paid (29.20) 31.57 2.37 (57.04) 56.92 {0.12)

(29.30) 4.75 (24.55) (34.77) (7.51) (42.28)
Balance at the end of the year 475.90 (42.95) 432.95 402.35 (46.30) 356.05

/%
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Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 Mazrch 31, 2023
Scrvice cost 81.23 68.81
Net interest cost 26.22 18.56
107.45 87.37
C.  Plan assets
The plan assets of the Group are managed by Life Insurance Cotporation of India chrough a trust managed by the Group in terms of an insurance policy taken to
tund obligations of the Group with respect to its gratuity plan. The categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets is based on infotmation provided
by Life Insurance Corporation of India with respect to its investment pattern for group gratuity fund for investments managed in total for several other
companics.
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 Mazrch 31, 2023
Funds Managed by Insurer (investments with insurer) 100.00%% 100,00
D. Actuarial assumptions
a)  Economic assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount tate is based upon the market yields available on government bonds at the
accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on
long term basis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been sclected by the group.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.22%-7.23% 7.36%-7.38%
Expected rate of future salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
b) Demographic assumptions
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i) Retirement age (years) 58.00 38.00

i) Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability

i)  Ages

Upto 30 years
From 31 to 44 vears

100% of IALM (2012-14)
Withdrawal rate (°6)
External/Internal

2.32/1.22-3.00%
1.77/0.90-2.000%

2.32/1.22-3.00%
1.77/0.90-2.00%%

Above 44 vears 0.14/0.06-1.00% 0.14/0.06-1.00%
E. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.
Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated. Sensitivity as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of
pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy ate not applicable being a lump sum benefir on retirement.
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% s movement) (24.15) 26.47 (22.36) 24.46
Lixpected rate of fueure salary increase (0.5% movement) 22.97 (21.41) 21.82 (20.54)
Description of risk exposures:
Valuations are based on cerrain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such Group is exposed to various risks as follow
A) Salary increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the
liability.
B) Investment risk — If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment reruen on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last
valuation dare can impact the liability.
C) Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
D) Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilitics.
L) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact
Plan’s liability.
F.  Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years
Duration of defined benefit obligation As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than 1 vear 5591 25.80
Between 1-2 years 6.20 39.94
Between 2-5 years 37.71 17.91
Over 5 vears 376.08 318.71
Total 475.90 402.36
Expected contributions t 475 yent benefic plans for the following year is Rs. 131.55 lacs. (Mar-,ﬂ_'i.) A 3; Rs41 374N acs)
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Other long-term employee benefits:

The Group provides for compensated absences to its employees. The employees can carry-forward a portion of che unutilised accrued compensated absences
and wiilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
moaths after the end of such petiod, the benefit is classificd as a long-term cmployee benefit.

The present value obligation in respect of carned leaves are determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recogniscs
cach period of service as giving risc to additional unit of employce benefit entitiement and measures cach unit sepatately to build up the final obligatoas.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the compensated absences and the amounts recognised in the
Group’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Net defined benefit liability

Earned Leave (unfunded) 294.29 277.33
Total employee benefit liabilities 294.29 277.33
Non-current 218.89 232.02
Cutrent 75.40 45.31

Movement in net defined benefit (asset)/ liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asser) liability and its components:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 Mazrch 31, 2023

Defined benefit obligation

Net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the yeat 277.33 243.78

Included in statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 38.10 3813
Interest cost (income) 21.24 18.26
59.34 56.39

Included in Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements loss {gain)

- Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:

- financial assumptions 0.76 0.04)
- Hxperience adjustments (21.05) 11.54
(20.29) 11.50
Other
Acquisition adjustments 9.22 (4.10)
Benefits paid (31.31} (30.24)
(22.09) (34.34)
Net defined benefit liability at the end of the year 294.29 277.33
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Service cost 38.10 38.13
Net interest cost 21.24 18.26
Actuarial {Gain}/Loss on obligation (20.29) 11.50
39.05 67.89

Actuarial assumptions

Economic assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on government boads at the
accounting date with a term that matches that of Habilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on
long term basis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been selected by the Group.
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b)

i)

iif)

Discount rate
Expected rate of future salary increase

Demographic assumptions

Retirement age (vears)

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for
disability

Ages

Upto 30 years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7.22-7.38% 7.36-7.38%%
6.00%% 6.00%0
As at As at
Mazrch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

58.00 58.00

100%0 of IALM (2012-14)

Withdrawal rate (Vo) Withdrawal rate (*5)

00-3%
2-2.33%
0-1%

Fxpected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the following vear is Rs. 56.49 lacs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 71.55 lacs).

00-3%
2-2.33%
0-1%

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 18.34 vears (March 31, 2023: 18.72 years).

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the

obligation by the amounts shown below.

Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not caleulated, Sensitivity as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of
pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lamp sum benefit on retirement.

Discount rate (.59 2 movement)

Fxpected rate of future salary increase (5% movement)

Description of risk exposures:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
(9.86) 10.62 (9.54) 10.25
10.69 (10.00) 10.34 9.69)

Valuations arc based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such Group is exposed to various risks as Follow -
A) Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rare assumption in future valuations will also increase the

liability.

B) Investment Risk — It Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & acrual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed art the last

valuation date can impact the liability.

C) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subscquent valuations can increasc the plan’s liability.

D) Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilides.

E) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuatons can impact

Plan’s lability.

Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Particulars

Duration of defined benefit obligation
Less than | vear

Between 1-2 years

Between 2-5 years

Over 5 yvears
Total

As at As at
March 31, 2024 Match 31, 2023
75.41 45.96
5.22 50.48
54.85 13.11
158.81 167.77
294.29 277.32
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51  Related parties
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures, the names of the related parties where control exists and/or with whom
transactions have taken place during the vear and description of relationships, as identified and certified by the management are:

A. Name and description of relationship of the related parties

i Employees' benefit trusts, where control exists Career Launcher Emplovee Group Gratuity Trust

if.  Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the yeat :

Key managerial personnel (KMP) Mr. Sarya Narayanan R (Chairman and Executive Director)
Mr. Gautam Puri (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
Mer. Nikhil Mahajan (Executive Director and Group CEO Haterptise Business)
Ms. Madhumita Ganguli (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Mr. Girish Shivani (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Mr. Sanjay Tapriya (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Mr. Piyush Sharma (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Mr. Imran Jafar (Non-Executive Non-Independent Dircctor)
Mr. Arjun Wadhwa (Chicf Financial Officer)
Mrs. Rachna Sharma (Company Secretary and Compliance Officer)

Enterprises in which KMP and their Bilakes Consulting Private Limited, India
relatives are able to excrcise significant Career Launcher Foundation
Relatives of KMP Mr. R Stecnivasan

Mzr. Shiva Kumar Ramachandran

B. Transactions during the year: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a Enterprises in which KMP and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence
i Amount paid towards CSR expenses
- Career Launcher Foundation - 49.73

i Receipt on behalf of related parties
- Carcer Launcher Foundation 4.54 2.84

b Key management personnel (KMP) and their relatives

i Short term employee benefits:
- Mr. Gautam Puri 182.00 155.69
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R. 182.00 155.69
M. Nikhil Mahajan 178.25 142.61
Mr. R Sreenivasan 35.67 45.80
- Mr. Shiva Kumar Ramachandran 73.95 69.28
Mr. Arjun Wadhwa 64.91 59.24
- Mrs. Rachna Sharma 35.59 31.49

ii Employee stock compensation expense
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 3.09 0.76
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Transactions during the year: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 Mazrch 31, 2023

Post employment benefits:

- Mr. Gautam Puri - 1.06

- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 1.02 0.73

- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 0.96 0.66

Other long term benefits

- Mr. Gautam Puri 292 6.54

- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 3.56 7.05

- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 0.77 5.24

Interest expenses

- Mr. Gautam Puri 1.04 0.23

- Mz, Satya Narayanan R. 1.04 0.23

Loan/ advance taken

- Mr. Gantam Puri - 10.00

- Mr. Satya Naravanan R. - 10.00

Interest paid

- Mr. Gautam Puri 0.10

- Mr. Satya Narayanan R. 0.10 -

Commission to non-executive Directors

- Mrs. Madhumita Ganguli 7.39 2.00

- Mr. Girish Shivani 9.04 2.99

- Mr. Sanjay Tapariva 859 2,50

- Mr. Piyush Sharma 5.59 0.80

Balances outstanding as at the yeat end: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Enterprises in which KMP and their telatives are able to exercise significant influence

Capital advance

- Bilakes Consulting Private Limited 16.00 16.00

Other receivables

- Career Launcher Foundadon 13.87 18.41

Other advances

- Bilakes Consulting Private Limited 61.31 6131

Key management personnel (KMP)

Short term employee benefits payable:

- Mt. Gautam Puti 8113 61.93

- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 81.48 63.33

- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 74.00 59.07

Post employment benefits payable:

- Mr. Gautam Puri 20.00 20.00

- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 1501 13.99

- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 14.10 13.15

Other long term benefits payable:

- Mr. Gautam Puri 4417 41.25

- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 43.36 39.79

- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 41.77 41.00

Current loans

- Mr. Gautam Puri 10.00 10.00

- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 7 10.00 10.00

Interest on loan payable to / 7 ™ 114 -

- Mr. Gautam Puri | f \ 1.14 -

Mr. Satya Narayanan R
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Note:

In the financial year 2020-21, the Group had incorporated a Section 8 company Career Launcher Foundation which has not been considered for consolidatdon
purposes in accordance with applicable Ind AS.

During the previous year, post detailed assessment done by the Holding Company, a charitable trust by the name of Career Launcher Education Foundation
(“CLIF”) has ceased to a Related Party from (1-April 2021 post resignation of one of its trustees who was earlier an employee of CI. ducate Limited (¢
Holding Company”}. Post the tesignation of the above-mentioned employee, Holding Compuny no longer has any influence on the trust since 2 out of its total 3
trustees are not associated with the Holding Company. In addition to this, the Holding Company also doesn’t have any control over appointment of
current/ future trustees. During the vear the Holding Company carried out the following transactions with the trust:

A) Repayment of certain previous loan given & interest thereof: Nil (Previous vear: Rs. 48.25 lacs)

B) Loan wrirten-off: Rs. Nil {Previous Year: Rs. 1,214.60 lacs)

C) Purchase of Intangible Asscts: Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. 80.00 lacs)

Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties

Unless otherwise stated, the transactions with related parties are made on tetms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and are at market
value.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by Deparmment of Public Enterprises, the Holding Company is required to spend, in
every financial year, ar least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance
with its CSR Policy. The details of CSR expenses for the year are as under:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Gross amount requited to be spent by the Group during 8.30 -
the year.

B. Amount spent duting the year on:

- Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
- On purposes other than (i) above - 49.73
C. The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the 8.30 -
amount required to be spent by the Group during the year;*

D. The total of previous years’ shortfall amounts; -

L. The reason for above shortfalls by way of a note; - -
F. The nature of CSR activities undertaken by the Company. - -
G. The Company has excess amount of Rs. Nil (March 31, -
2023: Rs. Nil) to be carried forward and set off against the

requirement to spend under sub-section (5) of section 135

up to immediate succeeding three financial years.

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a - 49.73
trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR
expenditure as per Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosures.

*As the amount related to ongoing projects, the Subsidiary Company- Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited, had transferred the unspent amount 1o a
special account opened by the Subsidiary Company in this behalf with HDFC Bank Limited called “CLIPLUNSPENT CSR 2023-24.

In terms of the clause 22 of chapter V micro, small and Medium caterprises development Act 2006 (MSMED act 2006), the disclosure of payments due to any
supplier are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end

of each accounting period included in

Principal amount due to any supplier 76.84 15571
Interest due on above - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED ACT 2006 along - -
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during cach

accounting petiod

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have - -
been paid but beyond the appointment day duting the period) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting period - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such - -
date when the interest dues as above arc actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.
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54  The Group has in the past undertaken various Central and State Government / Agencies, projects in the education / skill development sector. Most of these

projects are complete, however the dues from the concerned department / agency has not been realized mainly on account of delays and long administrative
process. The deuils of such vocational trade receivables which are outstanding for a considerable period of tme are given below. In the opinion of the
management it has made the necessary provision, wherever required and written off the balances were such balances were not recoverable. The details are as
under:

Vocational trade receivables Total Amount Amount o/s. | Expected Credit |Amount of write off|
for more than 3 Loss (ECL)
years (out of Provision on
total amount) outstanding
amount
As at March 31, 2024 - E - 215.14
As at March 31, 2023 215.14 215.14 - 142.45

Share based payments
Description of share-based payment atrangements

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and Members of the Holding Company ar their respective meetings held on March 6, 2008 and
March 31, 2008, the Holding Company introduced its ESOP Plan currently in force, with the name “Carcer Launcher Employee Stock Options Plan 2008”
(hereinafter the “Plan” or “Scheme”), which provided for the grant of upto 250,000 options (Convertible into 2,50,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each)
o employees of the Holding Company and irs subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by Board of Directors and Members of the Holding Company at their respective meetings held on August 11, 2014 and
September 3, 2014, the Holding Company made amendments to the Plan, and changed its name to "Amended Career Launcher Employee Stock Options Plan
2608”7, Further amendments were made to the Plan vide resolutions passced by the Board of Directors and Members of the Holding Company at their respective
meetings held on January 29, 2016 and March 22, 2016, whereby the Holding Company re-named the Plan as "Amended and Restated Career Launcher
Employee Stock Opticns Plan 2014”. The Holding Company renews and extends the term of the Plan as the need arises, from time to time. Accordingly, the
Plan was renewed and extended for a period of 4 years i.c., from September 5, 2021 to September 4, 2025 by the Members of the Holding Company at the 25th
Annual General Meeting held on September ()7, 2021,

As on Maech 31, 2022, 3,353,050 number of options (1,67,525 number of options before the Sub-Division of cach Equity Share of Rs. 11)/- into 2 Equity Shares
of Rs. 5/- each, w.e.f. October 1, 2021) remained to be granted undet the Plan (March 31, 2021: 167,525 number of options of Rs. 10 each).

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company and shareholders at their respective meetings held on May 19, 2022, and September 15, 2022, have approved an
increase in the ESOP Pool under the existing Plan by an additional 5,00,000 options {convertible into 5,00,000 (Five Takh) equity shares of face value of Rs.5/-
each, tully paid-up}.

Further pursuant to a Bonus Issue of Equity Shares of the Holding Company in the ratio of 1:1, via approval of the shareholders of the Holding Company by
way of Postal Ballot dated December 04, 2022, the outstanding number of options under the Plan doubled from 8,35,050 to 16,70,100.

As on March 31, 2024, 16,70,100 number of options (March 31, 2023:16,70,100 number of options) were outstanding undet the Plan.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the NRC Committee and the Board of Directors of the Subsidiary Company, at their respective meetings held on February
13, 2021, had approved the ESOP Plan of Kestone CL Asia Hub Pte. Led. (Kestone Singapore’), a subsidiary of the Holding Company, under which, options
could be granted to advisors, directors, employees (full time or otherwisc), consultants or independent contractors of Subsidiary Company and/or its
Holding/Subsidiary Companics.

Note: Under the Plan, the options that are forfeited, lapsed or terminated, are pooled back and can be granted again. It is hereby confirmed that at no point of
time did the total number of options granted under the Plan exceeded 16,70,100.

Duting the year, the Holding Company has granted 95,370 options (Previous year: 1,29,828). The Nomination and Remuneration Committee as well as Board of
Directors did, however, approved the allocation of Options under the Plan to identified employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries, and approved the Terms
of Grant, Vesting and Fxercise of the Options at their respective Meetings held on June 22, 2023.

Details of options outstanding at the year end with the range of exercise price and weighted average remaining contractual life:

Employees entitled No. of options Vesting conditions Weighted Contractual life of options (in year)
Holding Company

March 31, 2024 1,37,508 3 vears' setrvice from the grant date 3

March 31, 2023 104,546 3 vears' service from the grant date 3

Subsidiary Company

March 31, 2024 17,60,000 Unconditional 2

March 31, 2023 17,600,000 Unconditional 2
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Reconciliation of outstanding share options:
The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share options under the share option plans are as follows:

ESOP to person other than directors of the Holding Company

Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Weighted Average Numher of Weighted Average Number of options
exercise price per options exercise price per
share option share option
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 14.57 1,04,546 -
Granted during the year 12.55 95,370 14.57 1,29,828
Exercised during the vear 14.57 33,356 - -
Forfeited during the year - - -
Expired during the year* 12,70 28,852 14.57 25,282
Outstanding at the end of the year 13.56 1,37,508 14.57 1,04,546
ESOP to person of the Subsidiary Company
Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Weighted Average Number of Weighred Average  Number of options
exercise price per options exercise price per
share option share option

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 0.85 17,60,000
Granted during the year 0.85 18,23,589 0.85 19,42,500
Exercised duting the year 0.85 85,000 0.85 85,000
Forfeited during the year 0.83 97,500 0.85 97,500
Expired duting the year - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 0.85 34,01,089 0.85 17,60,000

Fair value of options granted:
The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model. Expected volatility has been determined using historical fluctuation in share issue prices
of the Group.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Holding Company
Dividend vield - -
Hxpected volatliey (Yo)* 47.44% 36.64%
Risk-free interest rate (% n) 7.42% 6.60%
Weighted average share price (in Rs.) 49,15 62.28
Exercise price (in Rs.) 14.00 1400
Carrving amount of liability-included in employee benefit obligations 44,08 35.00
Subsidiary Company
Dividend yield - -
Expected volatility (%o)* 30.00%% 30.00%
Risk-free interest rate () 3.51%-3.62% 2.47%-2.61%
Weighted average share price (in Rs.) 4.24 4.24
Exercise price (in Rs.) 0.85 .85
Carrying amount of liability-included in employee benefit obligations 105.13 41.85

*The expected volatility is determined on the historical closing sharc prices of the Holding and Subsidiary Company for a period of the past year from the grant
date.

Expense arising from share-based payment transactions
Toral expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in profit ot loss as part of emplovee benefit expense was Rs. 90.75 lacs (Previous year :
Rs. 76.85 lacs).

—
///”_“\.
(o
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56 Disposal group - Assets held for sale

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Property, plant and equipment (refer note A below) 1,323.40 1,323.40
Total Assets 1,323.40 1,323.40
Note:

A On March 16, 2017, the Group entered into a Business Transfer Agreement with I-Take Care Private Limited (the “Buyer’) to sell its Infrastructure Services
business (the “Assets”) on the slump sale basis. The proposed sale of business is consistent with the Group’s long-term strategy to discontinue its K-12

business. As on date, transaction is cancelled as I-Take Care Private Limited hasn't been able to arrange the requisite funds to close the sale, accordingly,

advance received has been refunded. Also, the Management is in parallel discussions with other parties to locate an alternate buyer to give effect to the
disposal of the Assets. As the delay is caused by the events and citcumstances beyond the Group’s control and that the Management temains committed to its
plan to sell the Assets and the Group continues to disclose such Assets as "Disposal group-Assets held for sale" in accordance with Ind AS-105 "Non-

Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations™.

The following statement shows the revenue and expenses of the business subject to slump sale:

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended

March 31, 2024
Revenue
Other income -
Finance cost -
Other expenses 0.23
Loss from discontinued operations before tax (0.23)
Income-tax expenses -
Loss profit from discontinued operations after tax (0.23)

101
(1.01)

(1.01)

As at March 31, 2024, the cartying value of the Property, plant and equipment and other assets are listed below. The process of selling the said listed assets

expected to be completed on March 31, 2025,

Particular As at aS e
Match 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Property, plant and equipment (Iand and building at Raipur) 1,323.40 1,323.40
Total assets 1,323.40 1,323.40
The net cash flows attributable to the business subject to slump sale are stated below:-
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024

Operating activitics -
Investing activitics -

Financing activities

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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57 Operating segments

A. Basis for Segmentation

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's key operating segments. The operating segmenes are based on the Group's management and internal reporting
structure. The Chicf Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") identifies primury segroents based on the dominant source, nature of risks and retumns and the internal
organisation and management structure. The operating segments ate the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss
amounts are evaluated regularly. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions abour resources to be allocated

to the segments and assess their performance,

In accordance with Ind AS-108 “Operating Segments” and based on “Management Evaluation”, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (*CODM) evaluates the Group’s
performance and allocates resoutces based on the analysis of various performance indicators of business segments. Accordingly, information has been presented along these
business segments. The accounting principles used in preparation of consolidated financial tesults are consistently applied to compute the revenue and results of reportable
segments.

The reportable segments represent:

(i) EdTech: The Education segment of the Group comprising of business generated and serviced through educational services such as coaching, countent, platform, and
student mobility services.

(i) MarTech: The integrated solution driven services for corporates through Experiential marketing and Fvenr management (physical and virtual events), Marcomm,
Customized Engagement Programs (CEPs), transitioning business to metaverse, Manpower services and Sales management.

(i Others: The discontinued K-12 business and scaled down vocational waining business.

Information about reportable segments

Segment assets, Segment liabilities and Segment profit and loss are measured in the same way as in the financial statements.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit (before tax), as included in the internal
management reports that are reviewed by the Group's Board of Directors. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is
the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries. Inter-segment pricing, if any, is determined on an

arm's length basis.

Reportable segment

Year ended March 31, 2024 EdTech MarTech Others* Total
Segment revenue 19,951.80 11,903.59 31,855.39
Revenue from external customers 19,951.80 11,903.59 - 31,855.39
Segment tesults 2,932.83 T09.28 (213.30) 3,426.81
Segment assets (refer note 57 C(ii)) 13,364.38 8,279.28 17,162.56 38,806.22
Segment liabilities (refcr note 57 C(iv)) 4,750.00 3.424.48 2,779.38 10,953.86

Reportable segment

Year ended March 31, 2023 EdTech MarTech Others* Total
Segment revenuc 17,595.60 11,335.79 - 29,131.39
Revenue from external customets 17,595.60 11,535.79 - 29,131.39
Segment results 2,752.84 696.31 (134.62) 3,314.53
Segment assets (refer note 57 C(iit) 12,017.66 7,458.35 17,806.84 37,282.85
Segment liabilities (refer note 57 Clivy) 4,327.20 3,796.11 1,681.16 9,804.47
* Includes unallocated also

C. Reconciliations of information on reportable segments Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i Revenues
EdTech 19,951.80 17,395.60
MarTech 11,903.59 11,535.79
Others* - -
Total revenues 31,855.39 29,131.39
ii Profit before tax
Total Profit before tax for reportable segments 3,426.81 3,314.53
Othet income 1,385.58 640.07
Unallocated expenses:
-Finance cost 245.99 160.40
-Other expenses 2,405.67 1,863.26
Profit before share of loss of equity accounted investees, exceptional items and tax 2,160.73 1,930.94
Less: Exceptional items (refer note 46) (134.95 15.65
Loss of associates accounted for using equity method 2,295.68 1,915.29
Share of net loss of associates accounted for using the equity method (113.34) (40.16)
Profit before tax 2,182.34 1,875.13
Tax expense 601.53 (379.27)
Profit after tax 1,580.81 2,254.40
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Discontinued Operations

Loss trom discontinued operation before tax

Tax expense

Loss from discontinued operation

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange ditference on translation of foreign operation
Remcasurcment of defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Assets

EdTech

MarTech

Ozhers*

Unallocated amounts
Total assets

Liabilities
EdTech
MarTech
Others*

Unallocated amounts
Total liabilities

* Includes unallocated also

Geographic information

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.23) (1.01)
0.23) (L.01)
38.62 199.02
6.00 4.34
(1.57) (1.20)
43.05 202.16
1,623.63 2,455.55
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
13,364.38 12,017.66
8,279.28 7,458.35
30.25 320.56
17,132.31 17,486.28
38,806.22 37,282.85
As at As at
Mazrch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4,750.00 3.477.20
3,424.48 4,646.11
53.74 55.7
2,723.64 1,625.42
10,953.86 9,804.47

The geographic information analyses the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by the Group’s country of domicile in other countrics. In presenting the geographic
information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic location of customers and segment assets were based on the geographic location of the assets.
The Group is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the customers is shown below:

a) Revenues from different geographies

Within India
Outside India

b) Non-curtent asset

Within India
Cutside India

(This space has been intentianally left blank)

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
27,277.24 26,224 44
4578.15 2,906.95
31,855.39 29,131.39

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
12,560.29 11,923.97
1,857.30 1,584.96
14,417.59 16,508.93
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58, Fair value measurement and financial instruments

a  Financial instruments — by category and fair values hierarchy

The following able shows the carrying amounts and faie value of financial asscts and financal linbilities, including their levels in the fair value hicrarchy,

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Non-current

[y esimenes 60.50 60.50

Nan-carrent bank balances Deposits) 817.28 817.28

Orther tinancial agsets 291.37 291,37 -

Current

Trade receivables - 6,496.77 -

Cash and cash equivalents 4,133.72 4,133.72

Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents 6,242.20 6,242.20 -

Loans - 85.30 85.30

Orther financial assets - 2,007.93 2,007.93 -

Total - 20,135.07 20,135.07 -

Financial liabilities

Non-current

Borrowings 91.59 91.59

Lease lability 828.62 828.62

Current

Borrowings 2, UI() 35 2,016.55

Lease lability 265.19

Trade payables 3,332.81

Othet financial liabilitics 1,062.03 | 1,062.03

Total - 7,596.79 | 7,596.79

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Nan-current

Tnvestments 60.00 60.00

Non-current bank balances Deposirs) - 4,353.39 4,355.39

Other financial assets 25449 254.49

Current

Investments -

Trade receivables 6,963.49 6,963.49 -

Cash and cash equivalents 2,500.84 2,500.84

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3,865.78

Loans 94.77 -

Other financial as 1,464.08 1,464.08 -

Toal 19,558.84 19,558.84 -

Financial Labilities

MNon-current

Borrowings 69.32 69.52

Lease lability 336.24 336.24

Current

Borrowings 975,45 975.45

Lease liability 285.07 285.07

Trade payables 4,039.60 4,039.60

Orther financial liabilitics 912.04 912.04 -

Toral 6,617.92 6,617.92 B

The Group’s borrowings have been contracted at floating rates of interest, which resets at shorr intervals. Accordingly, the carrving value of such borrowings {including interest accrued bur not due)

approximates fair value.

The carrving amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and liabilitics, approximates the fair values, due to their shortterm nature. Fair value of non-current
financial assets which includes bank deposits (due for maturity after twelve months from the reporting date) and security deposits is similar to the carrving value as there is no significant differences between

carrying value and fair value,

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value non current fimancial assets and liabilities for whom the fair values have been determined based on present values and the appropriate discount rates of the Group ar

each balance sheet date. The discount rate is based on the weighted average cost of borrowings of the Group a each balance sheet date.

Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from tinancial instruments:

» Credir risk
= Liquidiry rigk
& Marker risk

This note explains the sousces of risk which the Group is exposed to and how the Group manages the risk.

Risk

Exposure atising from

Measurement

Management

Credit risk

Cash and cash cquivalents, trade receivables,
loans and other financial assets measured at|
amortised cost

Aging analysis

Diversitication of bank deposits and contral on credit,

Management systenm

Tiquidity risk

Other financial liabilities

Fund management and forecasting

Availability of surplus funds including borrowings

Market risk

Other financial asscts and liabilities

Foreign exchange rates

Budgeting and forecasting

Risk management framework

The Group's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Board of Directors have wuthorised senior management to

establish the processes and ensure control over tisks through the mechanism of properly defined framework in line with the businesses of the group.

The Group's ri

policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.

k management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, 1o set appropriate risks limits and cnmml< Gt imitor risksand adberence o limits. Risk management
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b. Financial risk management (continued)
(i) Credit risk

“The maximum exposure to credit tisks is represented by the ol carrving amount of these financial assets in the Balance Sheet.
Particutars

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Trade receivables 6,496.77 6,963.49
Cash and cash equivalents 4,133.72
Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 6,242.20
Loans 55.30
Orther financial assets 2,007.93 1,464.08

This note explains the sourees of risk which the Group is exposed to and how the Group manages the rish.

Category

Description of categosy

Basis of recognition of expected loss provision

Loans

Other financials assets

Trade receivables

Vinancial assets - high and low risk

Assers with sufficient capacity ro meet the obligations

[2-month expected
credit loss

12-moath expected credit
loss

Lifetime expeeted credic
loss

Particulars Category Description  of| Asset group Gross carrying| Exp d probability | Exp d credit losses |Carrying amount net of|
category amount impairment
12-month expected credit toss High and tow risk Assets with Loans 85.30 0.00% 85.30
sufficient capacity | Other financial 2,007.93 Q.00 2007.93
to meet the assets
Lifenme expected credit loss obligations Trade receivables 6,62.19 3.93%, (265.42) 6,496.77

Credit nsk 1s the risk of finaneia! loss w the Group if a customer ¢r counterparty to a financial instrument fails w meet its contracrual obhyations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from
custumers. The earrying amount of tinancial assets represents the maximurm credit exposure.

The Group's eredit risk 3s printarily o the amount due from custamers. The Group maintains a defined credit poliev and monitors the exposures to these eredit risks on an ongoing basis.

i. Credit risk on loans is Jimited as the loans are given to other related parties.

it Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is timited as the Group invests in deposits with scheduled commereial hanks with high eredit ratings assivned by domestic credit radng agencies. The cash and cash
equivalents are held wich bank and finaneial insteution, counterparties which are rated AA 0 AAA from renowned rating agencics.

The maximum exposure @ the eredie tisk at the reporting date is primarily from rade veceivables. Trade receivables are unseeured and are derived from revenue earned from customers primatily located in India,
The Group does monitor the economic environment in which it operates and the Group manuges its Credit risk throngh credit approvals, establishing eredit limits and continuausly monitoring credit worthiness of

custamers to which the Group grants credir teoms in the normal course of business.

On adoprian of Ind A8 109, the Group uses expected credit loss moded to asses

the impairment loss ot gain. The Group ceahlishes an allowancee for impairment that represents its expeeted credit losses in respeet

uf trade receivable. The management uses a simplified approach (Le. based on litetime ECL) for the purpuse of impairment luss allowance, the Group estimares amaounts based on the business envirunment in

which the Group operates, and management considers that the trade receivables are in defaulr {credit impaired) when counter party fails ©o make payments as per terms of

Group based upon histerieal experience determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables.

The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is Rs. 6,762.19 lacs March 31, 2023 Rs. 7,235.10 kaes). Trade receivables arc generally realised within the credic petiod.

‘The Group helieves that the unimpaired amounts fhat are past due by maore than 3 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behavivur.

The Group's exposure to credit risk for trade reechables are as follows:

sale/service agreements. However the

Gross carrying amount |
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 |
Nor Due 3,396.62 +4,278.94
-3 months past due 722.07 67707
3-6 manths past due 58236 461.71
6 months to 1 years 741.94 168.01
1-2 years 44773 443.65
23 vears 11143 683,92
More than 3 years 76004 | 52180
Total [ 6,762.19 | 7,235.10
Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade veceivables:
Particul Far the year ended For the year ended

anicnee March 31, 2024 Match 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning 27161 307.20
Impairment loss recognised 39.24 31.71
Utilisation / reversal of apening ECL {45.43) 67,30}
Balance at the end 265.42 271.61
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(o 1 ametnts are in Rupees lacs, mnless atherise stated)
b. Financial risk management (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that arc seitled by deliveting cash or
another financial asser. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to cnsure, as far as possible, thar it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitics when they fall
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the group’s reputation.

The Group believes that its liquidity position, including total cash (including bank deposits under lien and the anticipated future internally generated funds from
operations) will enable it to meet its future known obligations in the ordinary course of business.
Y g ¥

Pruden liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit
facilities to meet obligations when due. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
funding from group companies to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.
The Group's liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:

- Day to day funding, managed by monitoting future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met,

- Maintaining tolling forccasts of the Group’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturiries of financial liabilities at the reporting date.

As at March 31, 2024 Carrying Contractual cash flows
amount Total Less than one | Between one | More than 5 yeats
year year and five
years
Borrowings
Secured

-From banks
a) Vehicle loans 88.33 88.33 2791 60.42 -
by Term loans - . - -
-from NBEC
a) Vehicle loans 31.17 31.17 - 3117 -
Current borrowings

Secured
-Cash credit from banks 1,825.22 1,825.22 1,825.22 - -
-Interest accrued but not duc on borrowings 0.36 .36 0.36 - -
Unsecured
-From others 142.41 142.41 14241 - -
- from related parties 20.65 20.65 20.65 -
Trade payables 3,332.81 3,332.81 2,854.28 478.53 -
Lease liability (current and non current) 1,093.81 1,093.81 265.19 828.62 -
Orther financial liabilities
Unpaid dividend 2.54 2.54 2.54 - -
Advances from customers 154.63 154.63 154.63 - -
Pavable for selling sharcholders 28.06 28.06 28.06 -
Employee related payables 863.47 863.47 863.47 - -
Receipt on behalf of clients 13.33 13.33 13.33 - | -
Total 7,596.79 7,596.78 6,198.05 1,398.74 I -

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(1l amonnts are in Rupees lacs, nitess othermise stated)

As at March 31, 2023 Carrying Contractual cash flows ]
amount Total Less than one | Between one | More than 5 years
year year and five
years
Borrowings
Secured
-From banks
a) Vehicle loans 95.4 935.45 25.93 69.52
b) Term loans 56.51 56.51 56.51 - -
-From others/financial institution
a) Termn loan B -
Current borrowings
Secuted
-Cash credit from banks 851.70 851.70 851.70 - -
-Interest acctued but not due on barrowings 0.82 n.82 0.82 - -
Unsecured
-from others 19.57 19.57 19.57 - -
- from related parfies 20,92 20192 20.92 -
Trade payables 4,139.60 4,039.60 3,369.73 669.87
Lease Liability {current and non cutrent) 621.31 621,31 285.07 336.24
Other financial liabilities
Unpaid dividend 2536 2.56 2.56 -
Payable for selling shareholders 28,06 28.06 28.06 - -
Employee related payables 851.81 851.81 851.81 - -
Receipt on behalf of clients 29.61 2961 29.61 -
Total 6,617.92 6,617.92 5,542.29 1,075.63 -
(This space has been intentionatly left blank)
./- —
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B. Financial risk management {continued)

iii. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in matket prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest
rate risk, currency tisk and other price risk, the Group mainly has exposure to fwo type of market risk namely: currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retura.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucruate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group is exposed to the effects of
fAuctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows to the extent of carnings and cxpenses in foreign currencies. Lixposure
arises primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other currencies from the Compang's operating, investing and financing activities.

There are no derivative contracts entered by the Group. Hence, there is no associated risk.

Exposure to curtency risk
The summary of quantitative data about the Group's exposure to curtency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees, as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024
AED Amount in AUD Amount in UsD Amount in
INR INR INR
Financial assets
Trade reccivables 43.88 997.00 129.71
Other financial assets 0.69 1570 -
Other bank balances -
44.57 1,012.70 - - - 129.71
Financial liabilities
Trade payables and other liabilites 3.63 | 82.37 - - 52.10
3.63 | 82.37 - - - 52.10
Net exposure in respect of recognised assets and Habilities 40.94 [ 930.33 - - - 77.61
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
AED Amount in AUD Amount in USD Amount in
INR INR INR
Financial assets
Trade reccivables 43.39 971.09 - 1.58 129.71
[ Other financial assets 117 26.28
| Other bank balances -
[ 44.56 997.37 - - 1.58 12971
lFinancial liabilities
“I'rade payables and other liabilites 2.21 49.45 0.64 52,10
2.21 49.45 - - 0.64 52.10
Net exposure in respect of recognised assets and liabilities 42.35 947.92 - - 0.94 77.61 |

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 would have affected the measurement

of financial instruments denominated in a forcign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss (in Rs. Lacs) Equity, net of tax
(in Rs. Lac)
Strengthening Strengthening | Weakening | Strengthening | Weakening

1%y depreciation / appteciation in Indian Rupees against following
foreign currencies:

For the year ended March 31, 2024

AED 9.30 9.30) 6.77 6.77)

AUD - - - -

UsD 0.78 (0.78) 0.36 (0.56)
Total 10.08 (10.08) 7.33 (7.33)
For the year ended March 31, 2023

ALD 9.48 (9.48) 6.89 (6.89)
AUD - -

CSD u.78 0.78) .36 0.56)
Total 10.26 (10.26) 7.45 (7.45)

AED: United Arab Emirates Dirham, SGD: Singapore Dollar, USD: United States Dollar and AUD: Australian Dollar.
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(14 amounts are in Rupees lucs, unless otherwise stated)

. Financial risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk chat the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s main interest
rate tisk atises from long-term and short rerm borrowings with variable interest rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate tisk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans from banks carrying floating rate of interest. These obligations exposes the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest tate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting petiod are as follows:

Vatiable-rate instruments As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Term loans from banks and others - 56.51
Vehicle loans from banks and others 119.86 96.27
Cash credir from banks 1,825.22 851.70
Total 1,945.08 1,004.48

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss Equiry, net of tax

50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease

Interest on loans from banks
For the year ended March 31, 2024
For the year ended March 31, 2023

o

I~
o =
- &

G.AD 3.73 (3.73)
(2.61) 1.88 (1.88)
Interest on loans from others

For the year ended March 31, 2024 - - R
For the year ended March 31, 2023 - - -

Capital Management

For the purpose of the group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Group.

Management assesses the Group’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the undetlying assets.

To mzintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may return capital to shareholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capieal ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital {equity attributable o
owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings (refer note 24 and 28) 2,108.14 1,044.97
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 4,133.72 2,500.84
Adjusted net debt (A) (2,025.58) (1,455.87)
Total equity (B) 27,852.36 27,478.38
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) -1.27% -5.30%

(This space bas been intentionally left blank]
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Interests in othet entities
Subsidiaries

The Group’s subsidiaries at March 31, 2024 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held
directly by the Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group. The country of incorporation or registration is
also their principal place of business.

Name of the Entity Place of Ownership interest held by the | Ownership interest held by non-

business/ country group as at controlling interests as at

of incorporation | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Carcer Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00% - -
Kestone Asia Hub Pte Limited Singapore 99.90%0 99.94%% 0.04%% -
Carcer Jauncher Private Limited India 99.00% 99.00% 0.00% -
ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited India 69.50%% 69.50% 30.50% 30.50%
Kestone CL US Limited USA 100.00%0 100.00% - -
CIL. Helucate (Africa) Limited Mauritius 90.00% 90.00% 10.00% 10.00%
PT. Kestone CLE Indonesia (w.e.f January 4, 2023) Indonesia 100.00%% 100.00% 0.00%%
Cl. Singapore Hub Pte. Limited (w.e.f August 16, 2023) Singapore 99.98%% NA 0.02%6
Threesixevone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited (w.e.f India 38.92% 11.72% 61.08%%
February 17, 2024)*

* Associate Company from April 1, 2023 to February 16, 2024
Principal activities of Group Companies

Carcer Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Carcer Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited is cngaged in the business of publishing stady marerial and text books and other academic material.

Kestone Asia Hub Pte Limited

Kestone Asia Hub Pte Limited provides integrated business, martketing and sales services to corporate customers (including evenr management), marketing
support {including digital marketing support in the form of online marketing initiatives, to support offline marketing campaigns), customer engagement (including
audience generation, fead generation, loyalty and reward programs and contest management), managed manpower and training serviees.

Cateet Launcher Private Limited

Career Launcher Private Limited was incorporated on March 15, 2021 under the Companies Act, 2013 as a wholly owned subsidiaty with the objective of
becoming the digital arm of the Carcer Launcher brand.

ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
‘Fhis mainly includes test prep coaching examinations like Graduate Aptitude Test in FEingineering/Indian Engineering Services.

Kestone CL US Limited
Kestone CL Asta Hub Pre. Led had incotporated a wholly owned subsidiary in USA on March 22, 2018 in the name of Kestone CL US Limited with an objective
to provide Integrated sales and marketing services to the corporate and institutions in USA.

CL Educate (Africa) Limited
CL Edueate (Africa) Limited is the subsidiary of Kestone CL US Limited with an objective to provide Integrated sales and marketing services to the corporate
and institutions in Mautitius.

PT. Kestone CLE Indonesia
PT. Kestone CLIi Indonesia is the subsidiary of Kestone CI. US Limited, is engaged mainly in experiential marketing and event management solutions, digital &
marketing commission services, Customized Engagement Programs (CEPs) and Strategic Business Solutions.

CL Singapore Hub Pte. Limited
CI. Singapore Hub Pte. Limited is engaged in the business of publishing study material and rext books and other academic material.

Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited

Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited, the Company provides learning and education soludons for corporations, colleges and universities,
academic service providers, and government bodies in India and internationally. The Company offers graduation/diploma programs, as well as leadership
Programs to corporate managers.
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Associate Companies
Set out below are the associates of the Group as at March 31, 2024 which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to the Group.

% of ownership interest Carrying amount
Name of entity Place of As at As at Accounting As at As at
business March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 method March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Chennai, India refer note i LL71% of equity Equity - T07.42
Private Limited™* shares
- 707.42

i Associate till February 16, 2024, became subsidiary by virtuc of control over the board of the Company.

Total equity accounted investments

Principal activities of associate entity

Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited, the Company provides learning and education solutions for corporations, colleges and universities,
academic service providers, and government bodies in India and internationally. The Company offers graduation/diploma programs, as well as leadership
Programs to COrporate managers.

Significant judgement: existence of significant influence

Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited- The Holding Company have representation on the board of Threesixtyone Degtee Minds
Consulting Private Limited and right to nominate one Dircctor on the Board, it also participates in all significant financial and operating decisions. The Group has
therefore determined that it has significant influence over this entity, even though it only holds 11.71%% {upto February 17, 2024, became subsidiary) (March 31,
2023: 11.71%) of the voting rights.

(This space has heen intentionally left blank)
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. Non-controlling interest (NCI)

Set out below is summarised financial information for the subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are matetial to the Group. The amounts

disclosed for the subsidiary are befote inter-Group climinations.

i. ICEGATE Educational Institute Private Limited

Private Limited

Summarised balance sheet As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current assets 0.82 119.05
Non-curtent assets 172.40 229.08
Total assets 173.22 348.13
Current liabilitics 176.06 362.64
Non-current liabilities - 1.07
Total liabilides 176.06 363.71
Net assets (2.84) (15.58)
% of Non controlling interest 30.50%0 30.50%
Accumulated NCI (0.87) 1.27
ii. Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited (w.e.f. February 17, 2024)
Summarised balance sheet As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2623
Current assets 438.94
Non-current assets 223.26 -
Total assets 662.20 -
Current liabilities 8§19.49 -
Non-current liabilities - -
Pre-acquisition share of losses 183.04
Total liabilities 1,002.53 -
Net assets (340.33) -
% of Non-controlling interest 61.08% -
Accumulated NCI (207.87) -

. Other investments in equity shares
As at As at

Match 31, 2024 Mazrch 31, 2023
Ungquoted, measured at FVTPL - non trade
8,817 (March 31, 2023: 8,817) fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of B&S Strategy Setvices 20.00 20.00
Private Limited.*
447 (March 31, 2023: 447) fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Livue Technologies 40.50 40.00

*The investment has been measured at fair value through profit and loss using the latest financial information available with the Group.
* During the previous year, the Holding Company has sold the investment to one of its bider company at arm's length price and the same is approved

by the Board on its meeting held in December 28, 2022. The loss incurred on sale recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss (refer note 46)
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Income tax
. Amounts recognised in profit or loss
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current tax expense
Current year 313.70 301.81
Tax related to prior yvears (20.85) -
292.85 301.81
Deferred tax
Current year 308.68 (681.08)
308.68 (681.08)
Total tax expense/(credit) 601.53 (379.27)
Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit and loss
- Income tax relating to exchange difference on translation of foreign operation -
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
- Income tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plans (1.57) (120
(1.57) (1.20)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rate# Amount Rate# Amount
Profit before tax from continuing operations 2,182.35 1,875.13
Loss before tax from discontinuing operations (0.23) (1.01)
Total profit/ (loss) before tax 27.82% 2,182.12 27.82% 1,874.12
Tax using the domestic tax rate 607.07 521.38
Tax effect of:
Carried forward losses and MAT credir entitlement (26.79) (130.63)
Permancent difference
-Non-deductible expenses 5.23 (486.47)
-Others 8.70 17.98
Change in recognised timing ditference 10.67 (320.07)
Tax adjustments relating to earlier years (3.34) 18.54
(5.53) (900.65)
Tax expense recognise in consolidated statement of profit and loss (A)+(B) 601.53 (379.27)
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Movement in deferred tax balances

Deferred Tax Assets
Trade receivables
Deemed equity and other comprehensive income
Lease liability
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for employee incentive
Trade pavables
Other current liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and investment property
Other financial liabilities
Carried forward losses and MAT credit entitlement
Acquired on acquisition - Cartied forward losses and MAT credit
entitlement
Sub- Total (2)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and investment property
Right of use assets

Other intangible assets

Investment in subsidiaty and associates

Other non-current assets

Provision on inventory

Sub- Total (b)

Net Deferred Tax Asset (a)-(b)

Year ended March 31, 2024

As at Recognized in ~ Recognized in OCI As at

March 31, 2023 P&L March 31, 2024
67.38 L17 - 66.21
25.33 - - 2533
172.85 (131.46) - 304.31
174.37 (4.69) 1.57 77.50
13476 1515 - 119.61
- (24.05) - 2405
23.89 (16.05) 39.94

7.70 770 - -
34.61 33.35 - 1.26
1,598.41 141.38 - 1,457.03
- - - 142.79
2,239.30 22.50 1.57 2,358.02
100.57 (17.52) - 118.09
146.00 (137.65) - 283.63
167.31 (42.87) - 210.18
34.91 25.76 - 9.15

2.64 2.64 - -
(83.13) (116.54) - 33.42
368.30 (286.18) - 654.49
1,871.00 308.68 1.57 1,703.53

(This space bas heen intentionatly left blank)




CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(AX amonnts are in Raupees Jacs. nuless otbernise stated)

. Movement in deferred tax balances

Deferred Tax Assets

loans

Trade receivable

Deemed equity and other comprehensive income
Leasc liability

Provision for employee benefit

Provision for employee incentive

Oyther current liabilities

Propetty, plant and equipment and investment property
Other financial liabilities

Carried forward losses and MAT credit entitlement
Sub- Total (a)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and investment property

Right of use assets

Other intangible assets

Asset held for sale

Investment in subsidiary and associates
Other non-curtent assets

Provision on inventory

Other cutrent assets

Sub- Total (b)

Net Deferred Tax Asset (a)-(b)

Total deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilides*

Total deferred tax liabilities net of deferred tax assets™

¥eannot be legally set-off, hence shown separately

. Unabsorbed depreciation catried forward*

Never expire
Total

Year ended March 31, 2023

* Deferred tax has been recongnised on the unabsorbed depreciation.

.

As at Recognized in ~ Recognized in OCI As at
March 31, 2022 P&L March 31, 2023
8.00 8.00 - -
77.26 9.88 - 67.38
53.00 27.67 - 2533
143.00 (29.85) - 172.85
126.22 (49.35) 1.20 174.37
128.00 6.76) - 134.76
23.53 (0.36) - 23.89
31.00 23.30 - 7.70
- (34.61) - 34,61
1,717.07 118.66 - 1,598.41
2,307.08 66.58 1,20 2,239.30
385.96 285.39 - 100.57
118.00 (28.00) 146.00
128.00 (39.31) 167.31
378.00 378.00
72.00 37.09 - 349
5.00 2.36 - 2.64
19.00 102.13 - (83.13)
10.00 10.00 - -
1,115.96 747.66 - 368.30
1,191.12 (681.08) 1.20 1,871.00
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,703.53 1,471.00
1,703.53 1,871.00
March 31, 2024 Expiry date March 31, 2023 Expiry date
840.26 2,462.10 -
840.26 2,462.10
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CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(oAl amsemits are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

63 Business combinations

Pursuant to the agreement dated February 03, 2024 with Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited 361 DA, all the assets and liabilities of 361 DAL
engaged in the business of providing consulting and rescarch services in the education sector, were acquited by the Group cffective from February 17, 2024, This
acquisition will enable the Group 1o make its presence in the consulting and research services in India.

As per para 18 of Ind AS 103 (Business Combinations), all identifiable assers and liabilities were assumed by the Group at its fair valuc.

A. Consideration transferred

‘The following table summarises the details of the purchase consideration and the net assets acquired are as follows:

Amount
Consideration committed in cash and equivalents 79.01
Contingent consideration
Total purchase consideration 79.01

B. Acquisition-related costs

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs uf Rs | lac on professional and other costs. These costs were included in *Miscellaneous expenses’.

C. Significant judgement
The Holding Company has inereased the holding in its associate — ThreeSixtyOne Degree Minds Consulting Pyt Led. (361DM7) from 11.72% 1o 38.9220 by participating
in the rights issue carried our by 361DM on 2nd February 2024, The Holding Company has gained management control over 361DM on February 7, 2024, resulting in
change in starus of 36{DM from an associate to a subsidiary.

D. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The following table summarises the recogniscd amounts of assets acquired and liabilitics assumed at the date of acquisidon.

Amount
Property, plant and equipment T 11.46
Intangible assets 21.89
Deferred tax assets (net) OL4s
Investments 0.39
Financial assets t13.59
Other current asscts 1187
Financial liabilines (199.83)
Other current liabilities (8.76)
Previsions (121.45)
Total identifiable net assets acquired (107.36)
D. Calculation of Goodwill . Amount
Consideration transferred () 79.01
Fair value of existing shares held (B) G41.1
Group's share of losses in associate 1l] control acquired (C) (193.47)
Less: Net identifiable assets acquired {D) (107.36)
Goodwill (A+B+C-D) ) 633.90

E. Contingent consideration : Nil

F. Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of Rs. 182.12 lacs and profit of Rs 121.79 lacs w the Group for the year ended March 31, 2024,

G. Descriptive note on goodwill (explaining payment of goodwill)

This acquisition will enable the Group in strengthening and enhancing penertation of its Test Prep business.
q P g g P
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CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(1] amounts are in Rispees lacs, unless athersuise stated)

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule IIT

i. The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

ii. The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

iii. The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iv. The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during rhe financial year.

v. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invesred funds to any other personf(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall

(a) directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiarics), or

(b) provide any guarantee, security ot the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics

¥i.The Group has not teceived any fund from any persons) or entiry(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall

(a) dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ulimate Beneficiaries), or

(b} provide any guarantee, security ot the like to or on behalf of the Ultimare Beneficiaties

vil. The Group has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income daring the vear in the tax

-ssments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such zs, search or survey ot any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

viil. All title deeds of Immovable Property are held in the name of the Company.

ix. The Group has not been declated a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof,
in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of [ndia..

x. The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017,

During the financial year 2017-18, Career Launcher Education Infrascructure and Services Limited, then a wholly owned subsidiary (Pursuant to the Merger Order, the
subsidiary has been merged with the holding company) entered into an agreement to sell its School Business vertical (KK-12 Business) to B&S Strategy Services Private Limited
(B&S) for a tonal consideration of Rs. 4,630 lacs comprising Rs. 600 lacs pavable in cash and remaining Rs. 4,050 lacs by way of equity shares in B&S. Presently the
sharchelding in B&S, 15 8,817 equity shares of Rs. 11 cach, being 44.18% of total equity of B&S. Further, an averdue amount of Rs. 416.18 lacs is recoverable from B&S
towards cash consideration as per the aforesaid agreemeat, with the amount now being considerably overdue despite repeated reminders to the B&S Management,

The Holding Company has taken legal advice and initiated legal proccedings before the Honourable Delhi High Court, to protect its interests, including recovery of Rs.
+16.18 lacs of the cash consideration. A section 9 petition on the matter of CLEIS vs B&S was heard by Delhi High Court. The Honourable Delhi High Court on June 22,
2024 appointed a retired Figh Court Judge as an arbitrator to hear the dispute. The arbitrator has rejected the counter claim of the respondent {B&S Strategy Services Private
Limited). Final arguments have been addressed by both the parties. The Holding Company has received the award in previous vear which is expected to be realised.

In the previous year, the net recoverable amounting to Rs. 361.18 lacs has been charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Although the Holding Company has prudently
wtitten off the amount, it does not relinquish its tight to pursue legal action against B&S Strategy Services Private Limited.

There ate trade reccivables due to Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited (“CLIP™) from the Nalanda Youndation of Rs. 325 lacs, who had licensed school
infrastructure from CLIP in Indore and Raipur but failed to mect its payment obligations. Due to a considerable delay by the Nalanda Foundation in mecring its obligatons,
despite repeated reminders, CLIP had initiated legal proceedings against them for recovery of dues and return of assets, with the Honourable Delhi High Court. The
Honourable Delhi High Court had instructed Nalanda Foundation to return the assets to CLIP and appointed an arbitrator t hear the dispute. The arbitrator had issued an
intetim order in favour of the CLIP but at the time of the final award tefused to adjudicate the merits of the claim on technical grounds. CLIP has challenged the said
decision before the High Court of Delhi. The matter is currently sub judice.

Bascd on an opinion of an independent legal firm and internal evaluation, the management is of the view that the CLIP has a strong legal position, and the mateer is likely to
be adjudicated in the favour of the CLIP. Hence, the CLIP continues to carry the amount as recoverable.

During the current year, the Board of Ditectots of the Holding Company ar its meeting heid on August 02, 2023, has approved the buyback of Fully paid-up cquity shares of
face value of Rs. 5/- each from its shareholders / beneficial owners (Other than those who are promoters, members of the promoter group or persons in control) from the
open market through stock exchange mechanism for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs, 1,500 lacs (Indian Rupees One Thousand Five Flundred Takhs only). The
buyback commenced on August 21, 2023,

The Holding Company was able to complete the buyback of 10.49 lacs shares constituting 1.90% of the shares comprised in the pre-buyback paid-up equity share capital of
the Holding Company. The amount retutned o the sharcholders via buyback was Rs. 851.58 lacs includes share extinguished of Rs. 52.48 lacs and wtilisation of securitics
premium of Rs. 799.10 lacs(excluding taxes and other related expenses) at an average price of Rs. 81.14 per equity share. The Holding Company has incurred the total expense
related t buy back is Rs. 211.46 lacs out of which buy back tax is Rs. 169.01 lacs and other expenses of Rs. 42.45 lacs.

As per the amendment to the SEBI (Buy-back of sceurities) regulations 2018, the buy-back needs to be completed within 66 working days from the commencement of the
buy-back event. Further as per amendment, the Holding Company must utilize 75% of the amount earmarked for the buy-back. The regulations also mandate the Holding
Company to deposit 2.5% of the total buy-back amount in the escrow account which will be released on completion of the event, In case of non-completion, the exchange

may forfeit the amount baring some exceptions.

The Holding Company fell short of completing the targeted buy-back amount due to inadequate sell orders. The Holding Company has appealed to the SEBI for non-
forfeiture of the amount. The Holding Company has responded to the queries by the regulatory body and is awaiting final response. The Holding Company is confident of
gerting the result in their favour.

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company at its meeting held on May 19, 2022, approved the Buyback of fully paid-up equity shares of face value of Rs. 5/- each from
its shareholders / beneficial owners (Other than those who are promoters, members of the promoter group or persons in control} from the open market through stock

exchange mechanism for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 1,000 lacs (Indian Rupees One Thousand Lacs only).

The buyback started on May 27, 2022, and was concluded on July 29, 2022. The Holding Company completed the buyback of 797,200) Equity shares at an average price of Rs
125.42.

The buyback tax and ather related expenses of buyback have been adjusted against the Other Equity as per applicable sections of the Company’s Act 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Al amonnis are in Rupees lacs, anless othenwise stated)

"The Board of Dircctots of the Holding Company at its meeting held on November 02, 2022 had approved and recommended 2 Bonus Issue of Equity Shates in the Ratio of
1:1 ie. 1 (one) Equity Share of Rs. 5/- (Rs. Five only) each be issued for every 1 (one) existing Equity Share of Rs. 5/- (Rs. Five only) each held by the Shareholders of the
Company, as on the Record Date.

a. The Company has increased its Authorized Share capital from Rs. 2,728 Lacs consisting of 54,560,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each to Rs. 4,000 Lacs consisting of
80,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each.

b. The Shareholders of the Company approved the issue of Bonus Equity Shares via Postal Ballot on December 04, 2022,

¢. On December 19, 2022, the management committee allotted 27,534,156 equity shares of face value Rs 5 each as bonus shares in proportion of one bonus equity share of
face value Rs. 5 each for every one equity share of face value of Rs 5 each held on record date. The Bonus Shates were listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited w.e.f. December 30, 2022.

d. Earnings Per Shate have been adjusted for all the respective pefiods as increased for issuance of bonus shares.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted
by the Companics (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 tequiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts, shall use only such
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of accounts along with
the date when such changes were made and ensuting that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Group have used multiple accounting software for maintaining books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except for instances mentioned below —

a) The audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting softwate Microsoft Dynamics Navision to log any direct data changes, used for maintenance of
all accounting records by the Holding Company and subsidiary.

b)Three subsidiarics have used an accounting software Tally for maintaining its books of account which did not has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 wete approved by board of directors on May 08, 2024.

The Patent entity completely divested its entire stake in one of its subsidiaries — ICE GATE Educational Institute Pvt Led (ICE GATE) to its another subsidiary 361 DM.
The consideration is payable by issuance of new equity shares of 361 DM to the Parent entity. The transaction was subsequently approved by the shareholders of the 361 DM
on April 30, 2024, Further, the above transaction has no impact on the financial results for the year ended March 31, 2024

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / re-armanged as per the current year's presentation for the purposc of comparability. The regrouping/re-arrangement has no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

As per report of even date,

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants CL Educate Limited )
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